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Cal-Maine Foods, Inc. is primarily engaged in the production, grading, packing and sale of fresh shell
eggs. The Company, headquartered in Jackson, Mississippi, is the largest producer and distributor of fresh
shell eggs in the United States with fiscal 2003 sales of approximately 571 million dozen shell eggs,
representing approximately 13% of all shell eggs sold in the United States. Cal-Maine sells the majority of
its shell eggs in 26 states across the southwestern, southeastern, mid-western and mid-Atlantic regions of
the United States.

The common shares of Cal-Maine Foods, Inc. are traded on the Nasdaq National Market under the
symbol CALM.
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Letter to Shareholders: 
 
For the fiscal year 2003, net sales were $387.5 million compared with net sales of 
$326.2 million for fiscal 2002.  The Company reported net income of $12.2 million, or $1.03 per 
diluted share, compared with a net loss of $10.6 million, or $0.90 per diluted share, in fiscal 
2002.  These results reflect a better balance of egg supply with an improving market demand.  
Net income for fiscal 2003 includes $6.1 million, net of taxes, or $0.51 per diluted share, for the 
Company’s share in the settlement of claims against suppliers related to overcharges for 
vitamins and feed additives purchased by the Company.  The net loss for 2002 included 
$1.2 million, net of taxes, or $0.10 per diluted share, for similar settlements received. 
 
For the first quarter of fiscal 2004, net sales were $114.2 million, compared with net sales of 
$82.2 million for the first quarter of fiscal 2003.  The Company reported net income of 
$7.8 million, or $0.66 per basic share, for the first quarter of fiscal 2004 compared with a net 
loss of $1.7 million, or $0.15 per basic share, for the same period last year. 
 
The much improved results in the first quarter of 2004 reflect a reduced national flock size and 
a very strong demand for eggs.  Most people agree that the increase in demand is a result of 
the good publicity that eggs are getting from the medical community as well as additional egg 
usage in the high protein diets that are currently popular. 
 
As we move through the second quarter of fiscal 2004, Cal-Maine is hitting on all cylinders. 
 

• Egg prices are at record highs 
• Customer demand is very strong 
• The Company’s egg production is at record high levels 
• Operating efficiency is very good 

 
We look forward to reporting good results to you in the months ahead. 
 
Sincerely, 
 

   
Fred Adams, Jr. 
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer 
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PART I

ITEM 1.  BUSINESS

General

Cal-Maine Foods, Inc. ( Cal-Maine  or the Company ) was incorporated in Delaware in 1969.  The
Company s primary business is the production, cleaning, grading, and packaging of fresh shell eggs for sale t o
shell egg retailers. Shell egg sales, including feed sales to outside egg producers, accounted for approximately
99% of the Company s net sales in fiscal 2003 and 98% in fiscal 2002. The Company is the largest producer
and distributor of fresh shell eggs in the United States and during fiscal 2003, had sales of approximately 571
million dozen shell eggs.  This volume represents approximately 13% of all shell eggs sold in the United States.
The Company markets the majority of its eggs in 26 states, primarily in the southwestern, southeastern, mid-
western and mid-Atlantic regions of the United States.

The Company s principal executive offices are located at 3320 Woodrow Wilson Avenue, Jackson,
Mississippi 39209, and its telephone number is 601-948-6813.  Except as otherwise indicated by the context,
references herein to "the Company  or Cal-Maine  include all subsidiaries of the Company.

Possible Going Private  Transaction

As reported in the Company s Form 8-K Current Report dated July 11, 2003, at a special meeting held
on that date Cal-Maine s Board of Directors unanimously voted to explore the possibility of the Company
becoming privately owned.  At the same meeting, the Board also appointed a Special Committee comprised of
three independent directors to consider the feasibility of going private  and, in that regard, to ensure that the
best interests of the Company and its shareholders would be served by such a course of action.

The members of the Special Committee are W.B. Cox, Letitia C. Hughes and R. Faser Triplett, M.D.
Following their appointment, the Committee members held an organizational meeting and elected Dr. Triplett
as the Committee s Chairman.  In addition, the Committee decided to interview certain investment banking
firms for purposes of obtaining an opinion as to the fairness from a financial standpoint of the price to be paid
by the Company for shares to be purchased in a going private transaction, as well as to assist the Committee in
evaluating alternative methods of going private.  In addition, the Committee selected and engaged its own
independent counsel to advise and represent the Committee on related legal matters.

On July 24, 2003, after considering several investment banking firms, the Special Committee engaged
Houlihan Lokey Howard & Zukin Financial Advisors, Inc. ( Houlihan Lokey ) to serve as investment adviser
to the Committee in connection with the possible going private transaction.  The selection of Houlihan Lokey
was reported by the Committee to the full Board of Directors of the Company at a regular quarterly Directors
meeting held the same day.  Houlihan Lokey will report to the Special Committee and its final written opinion
will be addressed to the full Board of Directors of the Company.  All expenses of a going private transaction,
including Houlihan Lokey s fee, will be paid by the Company.

It is presently contemplated that a going private transaction would be effected by means of a reverse
split  of the Company s Common Stock.  This would require an amendment of the Company s Certificate of
Incorporation that would result in fractional shares that would be purchased by the Company for cash.

If a going private transaction is effected, as to which the Company can make no representation or
prediction, the reporting and other applicable requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 will no
longer apply to the Company or to any officer, director or controlling stockholder of the Company.
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Growth Strategy and Acquisitions

The Company has for many years pursued a growth strategy focused on the acquisition of existing shell
egg production and processing facilities, as well as the construction of new and more efficient facilities.  Since
the beginning of fiscal 1989, the Company has consummated ten acquisitions, adding an aggregate of 21
million layers to its capacity, and built six new in-line  shell egg production and processing facilities and one
pullet growing facility, adding 6.5 million layers and 1.5 million growing pullets to its capacity.  Each of the
new shell egg production facilities generally provides for the processing of approximately 400 cases of shell
eggs per hour. These increases in capacity have been accompanied by the retirement of older and less efficient
facilities and a reduction in eggs produced by contract producers.  The in-line  facilities result in the
gathering, cleaning, grading and packaging of shell eggs by less labor-intensive, more efficient, mechanical
means.

As a result of the Company s strategy, the Company s total flock, including pullets, layers and
breeders, has increased from approximately 6.8 million at May 28, 1988 to an average of approximately 22.7
million for each of the past five fiscal years.  Also, the number of dozens of shell eggs sold has increased from
approximately 117 million in the fiscal year ended May 28, 1988 to an average of approximately 525.3
million over the past five fiscal years.  Net sales amounted to $387.5 million in fiscal 2003 compared to net
sales of $69.9 million in fiscal 1988.

The Company s acquisitions and construction of larger facilities, described in the tables below, reflect
the continuing concentration of shell egg production in the United States in a decreasing number of shell egg
producers.  The Company believes that a continuation of that concentration trend may result in the reduced
cyclicality of shell egg prices, but no assurance can be given in that regard.

Acquisitions of Egg Production and Processing Facilities

Fiscal Year (1) Seller Location Layers Acquired
1989 Egg City, Inc. Arkansas 1,300,000
1990 Sunny Fresh Foods, Inc. (2) 7,500,000
1991 Sunnyside Eggs, Inc. North Carolina 1,800,000
1994 Wayne Detling Farms Ohio 1,500,000
1995 A & G Farms Kentucky 1,000,000
1997 Sunbest Farms Arkansas    600,000
1997 Southern Empire Egg Farm, Inc. Georgia 1,300,000
1998 J&S Farms / Savannah Valley Egg Georgia    900,000
1999 Hudson Brothers, Inc. Kentucky 1,200,000
2000 Smith Farms Texas/Arkansas 3,900,000

Total 21,000,000
(1) The Company s fiscal year ends on the Saturday closest to May 31.
(2) New Mexico, Kansas, Texas, Alabama, Oklahoma, Arkansas and North Carolina

Construction of Egg Production, Pullet Growing and Processing Facilities (1)

Fiscal Year Completed Location Layer Capacity Pullet Capacity
1990 Mississippi 1,000,000 200,000
1992 Louisiana 1,000,000
1992 Mississippi 500,000
1994 Mississippi 1,000,000
1996 Texas 1,000,000 250,000
1999 Kansas 1,250,000 250,000
2001 Texas 1,300,000 300,000

        Total 6,550,000 1,500,000
(1) Does not include construction in Guthrie, Kentucky, commenced in fiscal 2001, and to be completed in the first or

second quarter of fiscal 2004 at an estimated cost of $18.0 million, adding approximately 1,500,000 layer capacity.
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Although it  has made no acquisitions in the past three fiscal years, the Company proposes to continue to
pursue opportunities for the acquisition of other companies engaged in the production and sale of shell eggs.  Federal
anti-trust laws require regulatory approval of acquisitions that exceed certain threshold levels of significance.  Also,
the Company is subject to federal and state laws generally prohibiting anti-competitive conduct.  Because the shell
egg production and distribution industry is so fragmented, the Company believes that its sales of shell eggs during its
last fiscal year represented only approximately 13% of domestic shell egg sales notwithstanding that it  is the largest
producer and distributor of shell eggs in the United States based on independently prepared industry statistics.   The
Company believes that regulatory approval of any future acquisitions either will not be required, or, if required, that
such approvals will be obtained.

The construction of new, more efficient production and processing facilit ies is an integral part of the
Company s growth strategy.  Any such construction will require compliance with applicable environmental laws and
regulations, including the receipt of permits, that could cause schedule delays, although the Company has not
experienced any significant delays in the past.

Shell Eggs

Production.  The Company s operations are fully integrated. At its facilit ies, it  hatches chicks, grows
pullets, manufactures feed and produces and distributes shell eggs.  Company-owned facilit ies accounted for
approximately 87% of its total fiscal 2003 egg production, with the balance attributable to contract producers used
by the Company.

Under Cal-Maine s arrangements with its contract producers, the Company owns the entire flock, furnishes
all feed and supplies, owns the shell eggs produced, and assumes all market risks.  The contract producers own their
facilit ies and are paid a fee based on production with incentives for performance.

The commercial production of shell eggs requires a source of baby chicks for laying flock replacement.  The
Company produces approximately 98% of its chicks in its own hatcheries and obtains the balance from commercial
sources.  Feed for the laying flocks is produced by Company-owned and operated mills located in Arkansas, Georgia,
Kentucky, Louisiana, Mississippi, New Mexico, Ohio, Oklahoma, South Carolina, Tennessee, and Texas.  All
ingredients necessary for feed production are readily available in the open market and most are purchased centrally
from Jackson, Mississippi.  Approximately 97% of the feed for Company flocks is manufactured at feed mills
owned and operated by the Company.  Poultry feed is formulated using a computer model to determine the least-
cost ration to meet the nutritional needs of the flocks.  Although most feed ingredients are purchased on an as-
needed basis, from time-to-time, when deemed advantageous, the Company purchases ingredients in advance with a
delayed delivery of several weeks or a few months.

Feed cost represents the largest element of the Company s farm egg production cost, ranging from 54% to
56% of total cost in the last five years, or an average of approximately 55%.  Although feed ingredients are
available from a number of sources, the Company has litt le, if any, control over the prices of the ingredients it
purchases, which are affected by weather and by various supply and demand factors.  Increases in feed costs not
accompanied by increases in the selling price of eggs can have a material adverse effect on the results of the
Company s operations.  However, higher feed costs may encourage producers to reduce production, possibly
resulting in higher egg prices.  Alternatively, low feed costs can encourage industry overproduction, possibly
resulting in lower egg prices.  Historically, the Company has tended to have higher profit  margins when feed costs
are higher.  However, this may not be the case in the future.

After the eggs are produced, they are cleaned, graded, and packaged.  Substantially all of the Company-
owned farms have modern in-line  facilit ies that mechanically gather, clean, grade and package the eggs produced.
The increased use of in-line facilit ies has generated significant cost savings as compared to the cost of eggs produced
from non-in-line facilit ies.  In addition to greater efficiency, the in-line facilit ies produce a higher percentage of
grade A eggs, which sell at  higher prices.  Eggs produced on farms owned by contractors are brought to the
Company s processing plants where they are cleaned, graded and packaged.  
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The Company s egg production activities are subject to risks inherent in the agriculture industry, such
as weather conditions and disease factors.  These risks are not within the Company s control and could have a
material adverse effect on its operations.  Also, the marketability of the Company s shell eggs is subject t o
risks such as possible changes in food consumption opinions and practices reflecting perceived health concerns.

The Company operates in a cyclical industry with total demand that is generally level and a product
that is price-inelastic.  Thus, small increases in production or decreases in demand can have a large adverse
effect on prices and vice-versa.  However, economic conditions in the egg industry are expected to exhibit less
cyclicality in the future.  The industry is concentrating into fewer but stronger hands, which should help lessen
the extreme cyclicality of the past.  

Marketing.  Of the 571 million dozen shell eggs sold by the Company in the fiscal year ended May 31,
2003, 441  million were produced by Company flocks.

Sales of shell eggs primarily are made to national and regional supermarket chains that buy direct from
the Company.  During fiscal 2003, two customers accounted for more than 10% of net sales. A major Texas
grocery retailer, H.E.Butt Grocery Company, accounted for 12.8% of net sales and two affiliated national
retailers, Wal-Mart and Sam s Club, on a combined basis accounted for 21.3% of net sales. The top 10
customers accounted for 63% of net sales in the aggregate.  The majority of eggs sold are merchandised on a
daily or short-term basis.  Most sales to established accounts are on open account with terms ranging from
seven to 30 days.  Although the Company has established long-term relationships with many of its customers,
they are free to acquire shell eggs from other sources.

The Company sells its shell eggs at prices generally related to independently quoted wholesale market
prices. Wholesale prices are subject to wide fluctuations.  The prices of its shell eggs reflect fluctuations in the
quoted market, and the results of the Company s shell egg operations are materially affected by changes in
market quotations.  Egg prices reflect a number of economic conditions, such as the supply of eggs and the
level of demand, which, in turn, are influenced by a number of factors that the Company cannot control.  No
representation can be made as to the future level of prices.

Shell eggs are perishable.  Consequently, the Company maintains very low shell egg inventories, usually
consisting of approximately four days of production.  Retail sales of shell eggs are greatest during the fall and
winter months and lowest during the summer months.  Prices for shell eggs fluctuate in response to seasonal
demand factors and a natural increase in egg production during the spring and early summer.  The Company
generally experiences lower sales and net income, and generally losses, in its fourth and first fiscal quarters
ending in May and August, respectively.

According to U.S. Department of Agriculture reports, the annual per capita consumption of shell eggs
in the United States since 1990 has ranged from 234 to 253, averaging 240, with the peak consumption of 253
occurring in 2001.  While the Company believes that increased fast food restaurant consumption, reduced egg
cholesterol levels and industry advertising campaigns may result in a continuance of the recent increases in
current per capita egg consumption levels, no assurance can be given that per capita consumption will not
decline in the future.

The Company sells the majority of its shell eggs in approximately 26 states across the southwest,
southeast, mid-west and mid-Atlantic regions of the United States.  Cal-Maine is a major factor in egg
marketing in a majority of these states.  Many states in Cal-Maine s market area are egg deficit regions; that
is, production of fresh shell eggs is less than total consumption.  Competition from other producers in specific
market areas is generally based on price, service, and quality of product.  Strong competition exists in each of
the Company s markets.
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Specialty Eggs. The Company also produces specialty eggs such as Egg• land s Best  and Farmhouse
eggs.  Egg• land s Best  eggs are patented eggs that are believed by its developers, based on scientific studies,
to cause no increase in serum cholesterol when eaten as part of a low fat diet.  Cal-Maine produces and
processes Egg• land s Best  eggs, under license from Egg• land s Best, Inc. ( EB ), at its existing facilities,
under EB guidelines.  The product is marketed to the Company s established base of customers at prices that
reflect a premium over ordinary shell eggs. Egg• land s Best  eggs accounted for approximately 6.1% of the
Company s net sales in fiscal 2003.  Farmhouse  brand eggs are produced at Company facilities by hens that
are not caged, and are provided with a diet of natural grains and drinking water that is free of hormones or
other chemical additives. Farmhouse eggs accounted for 2.5% of net sales in fiscal 2003. They are intended t o
meet the demands of consumers who are sensitive to environmental and animal welfare issues.

Livestock.  The Company s livestock operations consist primarily of the operation of a 1,440 head
dairy facility, from which milk sales are made to a major milk processor.  Milk and cattle sales were
approximately 1% of the Company s net sales in fiscal 2003.

Competition.  The production, processing, and distribution of shell eggs is an intensely competitive
business, which, traditionally, has attracted large numbers of producers.  Shell egg competition is generally
based on price, service, and quality of production.  Although the Company is the largest combined producer,
processor, and distributor of shell eggs in the United States, it does not occupy a controlling market position in
any area where its eggs are sold.  

The shell egg production and processing industry has been characterized by a growing concentration of
production. In 2002, 62 producers with one million or more layers owned 79% of the 279 million total U.S.
layers, compared with the 56 producers with one million or more layers owning 64% of the 232 million total
U.S. layers in 1990, and 61 producers with one million or more layers owning 56% of the 248.0 million total
U.S. layers in 1985.  The Company believes that a continuation of that concentration trend may result in the
reduced cyclicality of shell egg prices, but no assurance can be given in that regard.

Patents and Tradenames.  The Company does not own any patents or proprietary technologies, but
does market products under tradenames including Rio Grande, Farmhouse, and Sunups.  Cal-Maine produces
and processes Egg• land s Best  eggs, under license from EB, as indicated above.

Government Regulation.  The Company is subject to federal and state regulations relating to grading,
quality control, labeling, sanitary control, and waste disposal.  As a fully integrated egg producer, the
Company s shell egg facilities are subject to USDA and FDA regulation.  The Company s shell egg facilities are
subject to periodic USDA inspections.  Cal-Maine maintains its own inspection program to assure compliance
with the Company s own standards and customer specifications.

Cal-Maine is subject to federal and state environmental laws and regulations and has all necessary
permits.  

Employees.  As of May 31, 2003, the Company had a total of approximately 1,534 employees of
whom 1,355 worked in egg production, processing and marketing, 92 were engaged in feed mill operations, 40
in dairy activities, and 47 were administrative employees, including officers, at the Company s executive
offices.  About 9% of the Company s personnel are part-time.  None of the Company s employees are
covered by a collective bargaining agreement.  The Company considers its relations with employees to be
good.
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ITEM 2.  PROPERTIES

The Company owns or leases farms, processing plants, hatcheries, feed mills, warehouses, offices and
other property located in Alabama, Arkansas, Georgia, Kansas, Kentucky, Louisiana, Mississippi, New Mexico,
North Carolina, Ohio, Oklahoma, South Carolina, Tennessee, and Texas, as follows: two breeding facilities,
two hatcheries, 15 feed mills, 19 production facilities, 19 pullet growing facilities, 20 processing and packing
facilities, three wholesale distribution facilities, and a dairy farm.  Most of the Company s property is owned
and encumbered.  See Notes 4, 5, and 6 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company.

The Company operates 332 over-the-road tractors and 411 trailers, of which 241 and 293 are owned,
respectively, and the balance is financed with TRAC leases.

At May 31, 2003, the Company owned approximately 16,000 acres of land and owned facilities to:

Operation Capacity

Hatch 16,000,000 - pullet chicks per year
Grow (1) 12,000,000 - pullets per year
House (2) 19,000,000 - hens
Produce 700 - tons of feed per hour
Process (3) 7,000 - cases of eggs per hour

(1) The Company uses contract growers for the production of an additional 1.1 million pullets.

(2) The Company controls approximately 22 million layers, of which 3.0 million are cared for by contract producers.

(3) One case equals 30 dozen eggs.

Over the past five fiscal years, Cal-Maine s capital expenditures have totaled approximately $128.2
million, including the acquisition of the operations of other businesses.  The Company s facilities currently are
maintained in good operable condition and are insured to an extent the Company deems adequate.
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ITEM 3.  LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

On December 26, 2002, Cal-Maine Farms, Inc.( Cal-Maine Farms ), a Delaware corporation and a
wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, was served with process in a civil complaint filed in the Circuit Court
of the First Judicial District of Hinds County, Mississippi, on behalf of four plaintiffs, Hunter McWhorter, a
minor, his two parents, and Michael Green, an adult. In addition to Cal-Maine Farms, Fred Adams, Dolph
Baker, Charlie Collins, R. K. Looper and B. J. Raines, officers of the Company, are also named as defendants.
Six other named defendants include Cargill, Incorporated, George s Farms, Inc., Peterson Farms, Inc., Simmons
Foods, Inc., Simmons Poultry Farms, Inc., and Tyson Foods, Inc., each of which is engaged in the broiler
business.  Additional individual defendants with affiliations to the other corporate defendants were also named.  

The suit alleges the original plaintiffs have suffered medical problems resulting from living near land
upon which litter" from the flocks of hens owned by certain of the defendants was spread as fertilizer.  The
suit specifically addresses conditions alleged to exist in Washington County, Arkansas, where there is a
relatively high concentration of broiler farms. Cal-Maine Farms is not engaged in any broiler production and,
compared to the broiler producers, only has a very small portion of the hens located in Washington County,
Arkansas.

The suit alleges actual damages in the amount of $55,000,000 and requests punitive damages in the
amount of $100,000,000. On December 31, 2002, an Amended Complaint was filed, bringing the total
number of plaintiffs to 93, of which 67 are alleged to be ill and three are deceased.  The damages sought were
not amended.

An answer has been filed on behalf of Cal-Maine Farms denying the plaintiffs claim but no discovery
has taken place.   At this time, motions to dismiss on behalf of certain defendants, including Cal-Maine Farms,
are pending, but not yet scheduled for hearing.  At this stage, it is impossible to evaluate the potential
exposure, if any, of Cal-Maine Farms to damages in this suit.

The Company is not a party to any other litigation, which, in the opinion of management, is likely t o
have a material adverse effect on the Company s consolidated financial position or results of operations.

ITEM 4.  SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS

No matters were submitted to a vote of security holders, through the solicitation of proxies or
otherwise, during the fourth quarter ended May 31, 2003.
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PART II.

ITEM 5.  MARKET FOR REGISTRANT S COMMON EQUITY AND RELATED SHAREHOLDER MATTERS

The Company s Common Stock is traded on the NASDAQ National Market under the symbol CALM.
At May 31, 2003, there were approximately 289 record holders of the Company s Common Stock and
approximately 756 beneficial owners whose shares were held by nominees or broker dealers.   The following
table sets forth the high and low daily sale prices and dividends for four quarters of fiscal 2003 and fiscal 2002.

Sales Price
Cash

Dividend
Year Ended Fiscal Quarter High Low Declared

May 31, 2003 First Quarter $4.36 $ 3.20 $.0125
Second Quarter 3.83 2.79 .0125
Third Quarter 4.22 3.17 .0125
Fourth Quarter 5.60 3.20 .0125

June 1, 2002 First Quarter $5.07 $3.35 $.0125
Second Quarter 4.64 3.50 .0125
Third Quarter 4.05 2.48 .0125
Fourth Quarter 4.15 2.95 .0125

There is no public trading market for the Class A Common Stock, the majority outstanding shares of
which are owned by Fred R. Adams, Jr., Chairman of the Board of Directors and Chief Executive Officer of the
Company.

The Company s current cash dividend is $.0125 per share on Common Stock, representing an annual
cash dividend of $.05 per share. The cash dividend is $.011875 per share on Class A Common Stock,
representing an annual cash dividend of $.0475 per share. Under the terms of the Company s agreements with
its principal lenders, Cal-Maine is subject to various financial covenants limiting its ability to pay dividends.
The Company is required to maintain minimum levels of working capital and net worth, to limit capital
expenditures, leasing transactions and additional long-term borrowings, and to maintain various current and
cash-flow coverage ratios, among other restrictions.  For the foreseeable future, the Company expects t o
retain the majority of earnings for use in its business.
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ITEM 6.  SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

                                   Fiscal Years Ended                                   
May 31, June 1, June 2, June 3, May 29,

     2003          2002          2001          2000          1999     
(Amounts in thousands, except per share data)

Statement of Operations Data:
Net sales $ 387,462 $ 326,171 $ 358,412 $ 287,055 $ 287,954
Cost of sales      315,169        291,767        299,417        268,937        242,022
Gross profit 72,293 34,404 58,995 18,118 45,932
Selling, general and administrative        46,029          42,332          42,337          40,059          36,406

Operating income (loss) 26,264 (7,928) 16,658 (21,941)  9,526
Other income (expense):

Interest expense (net) (8,096)  (8,503)  (8,736)  (7,726)  (5,195)
Equity in income (loss) of affiliates 442  (480) 415 130 326
Other             527               547            2,378            2,525            3,330

(7,127)  (8,436)  (5,943)  (5,071) (1,539)
Income (loss) before income tax 19,137  (16,364)  10,715  (27,012) 7,987
Income tax expense (benefit)          6,925           (5,790)           3,891           (9,633)           2,907
Net income (loss) $     12,212   $    (10,574)  $       6,824   $    (17,379)  $       5,080
Net income (loss) per common share:

Basic $          1.04   $           (.90) $            .57   $         (1.41) $          0.39
Diluted           $          1.03   $           (.90)  $           .56   $         (1.41) $          0.39

Cash dividends declared per share $        0.050  $        0.050  $        0.050  $        0.048  $        0.045
Weighted average shares outstanding:

Basic        11,764          11,764          12,051          12,362          12,999
Diluted        11,862          11,764          12,120          12,362          13,114

Balance Sheet Data:
Working capital $ 27,749 $ 17,310 $ 28,386 $ 18,485 $ 48,501
Total assets 235,392 229,654 234,752 231,899 213,682
Total debt (including current portion) 108,244 118,362 118,340 119,736 84,004
Total stockholders  equity 66,085 54,460 66,196 61,353 80,584
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ITEM 7.  MANAGEMENTS S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL
  CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

OVERVIEW

The Company is primarily engaged in the production, cleaning, grading, packing, and sale of fresh shell
eggs.  The Company s fiscal year end is the Saturday nearest to May 31 which was May 31, 2003 (52 weeks)
June 1, 2002 (52 weeks) and June 2, 2001 (52 weeks) for the most recent three fiscal years.

The Company s operations are fully integrated.  At its facilities it hatches chicks, grows pullets,
manufactures feed, and produces, processes, and distributes shell eggs.  The Company currently is the largest
producer and distributor of fresh shell eggs in the United States.  Shell eggs accounted for 99% of the
Company s net sales in fiscal 2003 and 98% in fiscal 2002.  The Company primarily markets its shell eggs in
the southwestern, southeastern, mid-western and mid-Atlantic regions of the United States.  Shell eggs are sold
directly by the Company primarily to national and regional supermarket chains.

The Company currently uses contract producers for approximately 13% of its total egg production.
Contract producers operate under agreements with the Company for the use of their facilities in the production
of shell eggs by layers owned by the Company, which owns the eggs produced.  Also, shell eggs are purchased,
as needed, for resale by the Company from outside producers.

The Company s operating income or loss is significantly affected by wholesale shell egg market prices,
which can fluctuate widely and are outside of the Company s control.  Retail sales of shell eggs are greatest
during the fall and winter months and lowest during the summer months.  Prices for shell eggs fluctuate in
response to seasonal factors and a natural increase in egg production during the spring and early summer.  

The Company s cost of production is materially affected by feed costs, which average about 55% of
Cal-Maine’s total farm egg production cost.  Changes in feed costs result in changes in the Company s cost of
goods sold.  The cost of feed ingredients is affected by a number of supply and demand factors such as crop
production and weather, and other factors, such as the level of grain exports, over which the Company has
little or no control.

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The following table sets forth, for the years indicated, certain items from the Company s consolidated
statements of operations expressed as a percentage of net sales.

Percentage of Net Sales

Fiscal Years Ended May 31, 2003 June 1, 2002 June 2, 2001

Net sales 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%
Cost of sales   81.3   89.5 83.5
Gross profit 18.7 10.5 16.5
Selling, general & administrative expenses   11.9   12.9 11.8
Operating income (loss) 6.8 (2.4) 4.7
Other income (expense)   (1.9  )   (2.6 ) (1.7 )
Income (loss) before taxes 4.9 (5.0) 3.0
Income tax expense (benefit)    1.8 (1.8 ) 1.1
Net income (loss)    3.1  %    (3.2 )%    1.9  %
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Fiscal Year Ended May 31, 2003  Compared to Fiscal Year Ended June 1, 2002

Net Sales.  Net sales for the fiscal year ended May 31, 2003 were $387.5 million, an increase of $61.3
million, or 18.8%, from net sales of $326.2 million for fiscal 2002.  Total dozens of eggs sold increased in
fiscal 2003 and egg selling prices increased as compared with prices in fiscal 2002. In fiscal 2003, total dozens
of shell eggs sold were 570.7 million, an increase of 8.9 million dozen, or 1.6%, compared to 561.8 million
dozen sold in fiscal 2002. Consumer demand was good and egg supply was balanced, which resulted in higher egg
selling prices during fiscal 2003.  The Company s average selling price of shell eggs increased from $.549 per
dozen for fiscal 2002 to $.645 per dozen for fiscal 2003, an increase of $.096 per dozen, or 17.5%.

Cost of Sales.  Cost of sales for the fiscal year ended May 31, 2003 was $315.2 million, an increase of
$23.4 million, or 8.0%, as compared to cost of sales of $291.8 million for last fiscal year. While dozens sold
increased, cost of purchases from outside egg producers and cost of feed ingredients increased, offset by the
Company s $9.5 million recovery share of a class action feed ingredient lawsuit. The 1.6 % increase in dozens
sold was from increases in dozens produced in Company facilities and in the number of dozens purchased from
outside egg producers.  The increase in the cost of the eggs purchased from outside producers was due to higher
egg market selling prices.  Feed cost for fiscal 2003 was $.213 per dozen, compared to $.193 per dozen for last
fiscal year, an increase of 10.4%. A 17.5% increase in egg selling prices, offset by higher feed ingredient costs
and higher cost of purchases from outside egg producers, resulted in an increase in gross profit from 10.5% of
net sales for fiscal 2002 to 18.7% of net sales for fiscal 2003.

Selling, General and Administrative Expenses.  Selling, general and administrative expense was $46.0
million in fiscal 2003, an increase of $3.7 million, or 8.7%, as compared to an expense of $42.3 million for
fiscal 2002. The increase is due to increases in insurance expense, bad debt reserves and value of the
Company s stock option plan. Due to overall increases in the insurance market during fiscal 2003, the cost of
general business and property insurance increased $1.0 million. In the fourth quarter of fiscal 2003, a customer,
Fleming Inc., filed for bankruptcy and the Company adjusted its bad debt allowance for $1.1 million. Due t o
the increase in the market quote of the Company s stock, from $3.78 per share at June 2, 2002 to $5.24 per
share at May 31,2003, the increased value of $1.1 million of the Company s stock option plan liability was
recorded. Other selling, general and administrative expenses, including delivery, have increased approximately
$500,000. As a percent of net sales, selling, general and administrative expense decreased from 12.9% for
fiscal 2002 to 11.9% for fiscal 2003 due to higher average egg selling prices in fiscal 2003.

Operating Income (Loss).  As a result of the above, the Company s operating income was $26.2
million for fiscal 2003, as compared to an operating loss of $7.9 million for fiscal 2002.  As a percent of net
sales, the operating income for fiscal 2003 was 6.8%, as compared to an operating loss of 2.4% for fiscal
2002.

Other Income (Expense).  Other expense for fiscal 2003 was $7.1 million, a decrease of $1.3 million,
as compared to other expense of $8.4 million for fiscal 2002. For fiscal 2003, equity in income of affiliates
amounted to $442,000 of income as compared to a loss of $480,000 in fiscal 2002. Interest expense decreased
$407,000, or 4.8% in fiscal 2003. As a percent of net sales, other expense was 1.9 % in fiscal 2003 and 2.6%
in fiscal 2002.

Income Taxes.  As a result of the above, the Company s pre-tax income was $19.1 million for the
fiscal 2003 year, compared to pre-tax loss of  $16.4 million for fiscal 2002. The Company had an income tax
expense of $6.9 million in fiscal 2003 with an effective tax rate of 36.2%, as compared to income tax benefit
of $5.8 million with an effective rate of 35.4% for fiscal 2002.

Net Income (Loss).  As a result of the above, net income for fiscal 2003 was $12.2 million or $1.03 per
diluted share, compared to net loss of $10.6 million, or $0.90 per basic and diluted share for fiscal 2002
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Fiscal Year Ended June 1, 2002 Compared to Fiscal Year Ended June 2, 2001

Net Sales.  Net sales for the fiscal year ended June 1, 2002 were $326.2 million, a decrease of $32.2
million, or 9.0%, from net sales of $358.4 million for fiscal 2001.  Total dozens of eggs sold increased in fiscal
2002 and egg selling prices decreased as compared with prices in fiscal 2001. In fiscal 2002, total dozens of
shell eggs sold were 561.8 million, an increase of 16.7 million dozen, or 3.1%, compared to 545.1 million
dozen sold in fiscal 2001. Although consumer demand was good, increased egg supply resulted in lower egg
selling prices during fiscal 2002.  The Company s average selling price of shell eggs decreased from $.625 per
dozen for fiscal 2001 to $.549 per dozen for fiscal 2002, a decrease of $.076 per dozen, or 12.2%.

Cost of Sales.  Cost of sales for the fiscal year ended June 1, 2002 was $291.8 million, a decrease of
$7.6 million, or 2.5%, as compared to cost of sales of $299.4 million for  fiscal 2001. Although dozens sold
increased, cost of purchases from outside egg producers and cost of feed ingredients decreased.  The 3.1%
increase in dozens sold was from increases in dozens produced in Company facilities and in the number of
dozens purchased from outside egg producers.  The decrease in the cost of the eggs purchased from outside
producers was due to lower egg market selling prices.  Feed cost for fiscal 2002 was $.193 per dozen, compared
to $.197 per dozen for fiscal 2001, a decrease of 2.0%. A 12.2% decrease in egg selling prices, offset by lower
feed ingredient costs and lower cost of purchases from outside egg producers, resulted in a decrease in gross
profit from 16.5% of net sales for fiscal 2001 to 10.5% of net sales for fiscal 2002.

Selling, General and Administrative Expenses.  Selling, general and administrative expense was $42.3
million in fiscal 2002 and 2001. On a cost per dozen sold basis, selling, general and administrative remained
approximately the same, $.075 per dozen for fiscal 2002, as compared to $.078 per dozen for fiscal 2001.  As
a percent of net sales, selling, general and administrative expense increased from 11.8% for fiscal 2001 t o
12.9% for fiscal 2002 due to lower average egg selling prices in fiscal 2002.

Operating Income (Loss).  As a result of the above, the Company s operating loss was $7.9 million for
fiscal 2002, as compared to operating income of $16.7 million for fiscal 2001.  As a percent of net sales, the
operating loss for fiscal 2002 was 2.4%, as compared to operating income of 4.7% for fiscal 2001.

Other Income (Expense).  Other expense for fiscal 2002 was $8.4 million, an increase of $2.5 million
as compared to other expense of $5.9 million for fiscal 2001. Income from the settlement of an insurance
claim in fiscal 2001 accounted for $1.4 million of the change in other expense in fiscal 2002 as compared t o
fiscal 2001.  For fiscal 2002, equity in income of affiliates was a loss of $480,000 as compared to income of
$415,000 in fiscal 2001. Interest expense decreased $232,000, or 2.7% in fiscal 2002. As a percent of net
sales, other expense was 2.6 % in fiscal 2002 and 1.7% in fiscal 2001.

Income Taxes.  As a result of the above, the Company s pre-tax loss was $16.4 million for the fiscal
2002 year, compared to pre-tax income of  $10.7 million for fiscal 2001. The Company had an income tax
benefit of $5.8 million in fiscal 2002 with an effective tax rate of 35.4%, as compared to income tax expense
of $3.9 million with an effective rate of 36.3% for fiscal 2001.

Net Income (Loss).  As a result of the above, net loss for fiscal 2002 was $10.6 million or $0.90 per
basic and diluted share, compared to net income of $6.8 million, or $0.57 per basic share and $0.56 per diluted
share for fiscal 2001

Capital Resources and Liquidity.  The Company s working capital at May 31, 2003 was $27.7 million
compared to $17.3 million at June 1, 2002.  The Company s current ratio was 1.48 at May 31, 2003 as compared
with 1.30 at June 1, 2002.  The Company s need for working capital generally is highest in the last and first  fiscal
quarters ending in May and August, respectively, when egg prices are normally at seasonal lows.  Seasonal borrowing
needs frequently are higher during these quarters than during other fiscal quarters.  The Company has a $35.0
million line of credit with three banks, none of which was utilized at May 31, 2003.  The Company s long-term
debt at May 31, 2003, including current maturities, amounted to $108.2 million, as compared to $118.4 million at
June 1, 2002.
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For the fiscal year ended May 31, 2003, $30.7 million was provided by operating activities.  The Company
received $529,000 net proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment and $205,000 in net cash activities
covering notes receivable and investments.  In fiscal 2003, $7.5 million was used for construction projects and $5.0
million for purchases of property, plant and equipment.  Approximately $587,000 was used for dividend payments
on the common stock.  Principal payments of $10.1 million were made on long-term debt and $7.0 million was
repaid on borrowings on the line of credit. The net result  of these activities was an increase in cash and cash
equivalents of $1.2 million for fiscal 2003.

As discussed in Item1 Business, the Company is exploring the possibility of becoming privately owned.
Proposed funding for the transaction would be provided by a $6.9 million income tax refund receivable, an
additional $5.0 million long-term borrowing from an insurance company, and short-term borrowings under the
Company s bank line of credit.

According to U.S. Department of Agriculture reports, the chick hatch for the first  six months of calendar
2003 was lower than in the same six-month period in 2002. The projected  hen  numbers for the balance 2003 and
the first  half of 2004 should be no greater than the year earlier. This could result  in a better egg supply-demand
balance in the year ahead. Current projections for the fall 2003 corn and soybean crop are good and could result  in
reasonable feed ingredient cost for the year ahead.

Substantially all trade receivables and inventories collateralize the Company s line of credit, and property,
plant and equipment collateralize the Company s long-term debt.  The Company is required by certain provisions
of these loan agreements to (1) maintain minimum levels of working capital and net worth; (2) limit dividends,
capital expenditures, lease obligations and additional long-term borrowings; and (3) maintain various current and
cash-flow coverage ratios, among other restrictions.    At May 31, 2003, the Company is in compliance with the
provisions of all loan agreements, including any provisions waived or amended. Under certain of the loan
agreements, the lenders have the option to require the prepayment of any outstanding borrowings in the event of a
change in the control of the Company.  

In fiscal 2001, the Company began construction of a new shell egg production and processing facility in
Guthrie, Kentucky, with completion of the facility originally expected in fiscal 2003. Due to weather related
construction delays, completion is now expected during the first  or second quarter of fiscal 2004. The total cost of
the facility is approximately $18.0 million, of which $14.6 million was incurred through May 31, 2003.  The
Company has commitments from an insurance company to receive $5.0 million in long-term borrowings and from
a leasing company to receive $7.5 million applicable to the Guthrie facility.  In addition to the construction, the
Company has projected capital expenditures of $11.0 million in fiscal 2004, which will be funded by cash flows
from operations and additional long-term borrowings.

The Company has $2.5 million of deferred tax liability due to a subsidiary s change from a cash basis to an
accrual basis taxpayer on May 29, 1988.  The Taxpayer Relief Act of 1997 provides that the taxes on the cash basis
temporary differences as of that date are generally payable over the 20 years beginning in fiscal 1999 or in the first
fiscal year in which there is a change in ownership control. Payment of the $2.5 million deferred tax liability would
reduce the Company s cash, but would not impact the Company s consolidated statement of operations or
stockholders  equity, as these taxes have been accrued and are reflected on the Company s consolidated balance
sheet.  See Note 10 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

Critical Accounting Policies.  The preparation of financial statements in accordance with accounting
standards generally accepted in the United States requires management to make estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported
amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period.  Actual results could differ from these estimates.  

Management suggests that the Company s Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, as described in
Note 1 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements, be read in conjunction with this Management s
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations.  The Company believes the critical
accounting policies that most impact the Company s consolidated financial statements are described below.
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Allowance for Doubtful Accounts.  In the normal course of business, the Company extends credit to its
customers on a short-term basis.  Although credit risks associated with our customers are considered minimal,
the Company routinely reviews its accounts receivable balances and makes provisions for probable doubtful
accounts. In circumstances where management is aware of a specific customer s inability to meet its financial
obligations to the Company (e.g. bankruptcy filings), a specific reserve is recorded to reduce the receivable t o
the amount expected to be collected.  For all other customers, the Company recognizes reserves for bad debts
based on the length of time the receivables are past due, generally 100% for amounts more than 60 days past
due.

Inventories.  Inventories of eggs, feed, supplies and livestock are valued principally at the lower of cost (first-
in, first-out method) or market.  If market prices for eggs and feed grains move substantially lower, the
Company would record adjustments to write-down the carrying values of eggs and feed inventories to fair
market value.

The cost associated with flock inventories, consisting principally of chick purchases, feed, labor,
contractor payments and overhead costs, are accumulated during the growing period of approximately 18
weeks.  Capitalized flock costs are then amortized over the productive lives of the flocks, generally one to two
years.  Flock mortality is charged to cost of sales as incurred.  High mortality from disease or extreme
temperatures would result in abnormal adjustments to write-down flock inventories.  Management continually
monitors each flock and attempts to take appropriate actions to minimize the risk of mortality loss.

Long-Lived Assets.  Depreciable long-lived assets are primarily comprised of buildings and improvements and
machinery and equipment.  Depreciation is provided by the straight-line method over the estimated useful
lives, which are 15 to 25 years for buildings and improvements and 3 to 12 years for machinery and
equipment.  An increase or decrease in the estimated useful lives would result in changes to depreciation
expense.

The Company continually reevaluates the carrying value of its long-lived assets, for events or changes
in circumstances, which indicate that the carrying value may not be recoverable.  As part of this reevaluation,
the Company estimates the future cash flows expected to result from the use of the asset and its eventual
disposal.  If the sum of the expected future cash flows (undiscounted and without interest charges) is less than
the carrying amount of the asset, an impairment loss is recognized to reduce the carrying value of the long-
lived asset to the estimated fair value of the asset.

Investment in Affiliates.  The Company has invested in other companies engaged in the production, processing
and distribution of shell eggs and egg products.  The Company s ownership percentages in these companies
range from less than 20% to 50%.  Therefore, these investments are recorded using the cost or the equity
method, and accordingly, not consolidated in the Company s financial statements.  Changes in the ownership
percentages of these investments might alter the accounting methods currently used. The combined total assets
and total liabilities of these companies were approximately $51 million and $30 million, respectively, at May
31, 2003.  The Company is a guarantor of approximately $7.2 million of long-term debt of one of the
affiliates.

Goodwill.  At May 31, 2003, the Company s goodwill balance represented 1.3% of total assets and 4.8% of
stockholders  equity.  Goodwill primarily relates to the fiscal 1999 acquisition of Hudson Brothers, Inc.  The
Company elected to adopt, as of June 3, 2001, Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 142,
Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets  (SFAS 142).  Under SFAS 142, goodwill and indefinite lived intangible

assets are no longer amortized but are reviewed annually, or more frequently if impairment indicators arise, for
impairment.  An impairment loss would be recorded if the recorded goodwill exceeds its implied fair value.

The Company has only one operating segment, which is its sole reporting unit.  Accordingly, goodwill
is tested for impairment at the entity level.  Significant adverse industry or economic changes, or other factors
not anticipated could result in an impairment charge to reduce recorded goodwill.
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Income Taxes.  The Company determines its effective tax rate by estimating its permanent differences
resulting from differing treatment of items for tax and accounting purposes.  The Company is periodically
audited by taxing authorities.  Any audit adjustments affecting permanent differences could have an impact on
the Company s effective tax rate.

Impact of Recently Issued Accounting Standards.  The Company adopted the provisions of Financial
Accounting Standards No. 133, Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities  (SFAS No.
133) in the first quarter of fiscal 2002.  Because the Company is not a party to derivative financial
instruments, the adoption of SFAS No. 133 had no effect on the consolidated financial statements of the
Company upon adoption.

Effective June 3, 2001, the Company adopted Financial Accounting Standards No. 141, Business
Combinations  (SFAS No. 141). SFAS No. 141 eliminates the pooling-of-interests method of accounting for
business combinations except for qualifying business combinations that were initiated prior to July 1, 2001.
SFAS No. 141 also includes new criteria to recognize intangible assets separately from goodwill.  The
requirements of SFAS 141 are effective for any business combination accounted for by the purchase method
that is completed after June 30, 2001.  

The Company also adopted Statement of Financial Accounting  Standards No.142, Goodwill and
Other Intangible Assets (SFAS No 142), effective June 3, 2001.  Under SFAS No. 142, goodwill is no longer
amortized but reviewed for impairment annually, or more frequently if certain indicators arise.  The Company
completed its transitional impairment test in the quarter ended December 1, 2001 and no impairment loss
resulted.

In the first quarter of fiscal 2003, the Company adopted Statement of Financial Accounting Standards
No. 144, Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets  (SFAS No. 144).  SFAS No. 144
supersedes Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 121, Accounting for the Impairment of Long-
Lived Assets and for Long-Lived Assets to Be Disposed of,  (SFAS No. 121), however, it retains the
fundamental provisions of SFAS No. 121 related to the recognition and measurement of the impairment of
long-lived assets to be held and used.   In addition, SFAS No. 144 provides more guidance on estimating cash
flows when performing a recoverability test, requires that a long-lived asset to be disposed other than by sale
(e.g., abandoned) be classified as held and used  until it is disposed of, and establishes more restrictive criteria
to classify an asset as held for sale.  The adoption of SFAS No. 144 had no effect on the Company s
consolidated results of operations or financial position.

In January 2003, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued Interpretation No. 46,
"Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities, an interpretation of Accounting Research Bulletin No. 51" (the
Interpretation). The Interpretation requires the consolidation of entities in which an enterprise absorbs a
majority of the entity s expected losses, receives a majority of the entity s expected residual returns, or both,
as a result of ownership, contractual or other financial interests in the entity. Currently, entities are generally
consolidated by an enterprise when it has a controlling financial interest through ownership of a majority
voting interest in the entity. The Company has investments in various affiliates (see Note 2) established for
the purpose of production, processing, and distribution of shell eggs. These entities are primarily funded with
financing from third party lenders, which is secured by first liens on the assets of the entities. The creditors of
the entities do not have recourse to the Company, except for one entity for which the Company guarantees
50% of its debt.  The Company accounts for these investments on the equity method of accounting, recording
its share of the net income or loss. The Company has the ability to exercise significant influence over
operating and financial policies. However, the Company does not have a controlling interest in the respective
entities.  At May 31, 2003, the Company s aggregate net investment in these entities totaled $6 million. The
portion of the debt guaranteed was $7.2 million at May 31, 2003. These amounts represent the Company s
maximum exposure to loss at May 31, 2003 as a result of its involvement with these entities.  The Company
is currently evaluating the effects of the issuance of the Interpretation on the accounting for its ownership
interests in these entities.
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Forward Looking Statements.  The foregoing statements contain forward-looking  statements which
involve risks and uncertainties and the Company s actual experience may differ materially from that discussed
above.  Factors that may cause such a difference include, but are not limited to, those discussed in Factors
Affecting Future Performance  below, as well as future events that have the effect of reducing the Company s
available cash balances, such as unanticipated operating losses or capital expenditures related to possible future
acquisitions.  Readers are cautioned not to place undue reliance on forward-looking statements, which reflect
management s analysis only as the date hereof.  The Company assumes no obligation to update forward-
looking statements.  See also the Company s reports to be filed from time to time with the Securities and
Exchange Commission pursuant to the Securities Exchange Act of 1934.

Factors Affecting Future Performance.  The Company s future operating results may be affected by
various trends and factors which are beyond the Company s control.  These include adverse changes in shell
egg prices and in the grain markets.  Accordingly, past trends should not be used to anticipate future results and
trends.  Further, the Company s prior performance should not be presumed to be an accurate indication of
future performance.

ITEM 7A.  QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISKS

See Note 10 to the Company s Consolidated Financial Statements.

ITEM 8.  FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA

The financial statements, schedules, and supplementary data required by this item are listed in Item
14(a) of this report and included at pages F-1 through F-16 and S-1.

Quarterly Financial Data:  (unaudited, amounts in thousands, except per share data)

Fiscal Year 2003
First Second Third Fourth

Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter
Net sales $ 82,218 $ 94,984 $ 106,822 $ 103,438
Gross profit 10,071 15,355 24,808 22,059
Net income (loss)  (1,712) 2,009 7,605 4,310
Net income (loss) per share:

Basic $    (.15) $       .17 $         .65 $
.37

Diluted $    (.15) $       .17 $         .64 $
.36

Fiscal Year 2002
First Second Third Fourth

Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter
Net sales $ 72,428 $ 83,759 $   86,927 $   83,057
Gross profit 2,697 9,394 12,019      10,294
Net loss  (6,100) (2,059) (551)        (1,864)
Net loss per share:
     Basic $    (.52) $    (.18) $      (.05) $     (.16)
     Diluted $    (.52) $    (.18) $      (.05) $     (.16)

ITEM 9.   CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND
FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE

None.
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PART III

ITEM 10.  DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE REGISTRANT

The information concerning directors and executive officers is incorporated by reference from the
Company s definitive proxy statement which is to be filed pursuant to Regulation 14A under the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 in connection with the Company s 2003 Annual Meeting of Shareholders.

ITEM 11.  EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

The information concerning executive compensation is incorporated by reference from the
Company s definitive proxy statement which is to be filed pursuant to Regulation 14A under the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 in connection with the Company s 2003 Annual Meeting of Shareholders.

ITEM 12.  SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT
AND RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

The information concerning security ownership of certain beneficial owners and management and
related stockholder matters is incorporated by reference from the Company s definitive proxy statement
which is to be filed pursuant to Regulation 14A under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 in connection with
the Company s 2003 Annual Meeting of Shareholders.

ITEM 13.  CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS

The information concerning certain relationships and related transactions is incorporated by reference
from the Company s definitive proxy statement which is to be filed pursuant to Regulation 14A under the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934 in connection the Company s 2003 Annual Meeting of Shareholders.

ITEM 14.  CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES
˚

The Company’s Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer have concluded that the
Company’s disclosure controls and procedures are effective based on their evaluation of such controls and
procedures as of May 31, 2003.  There was no change in the Company’s internal control over financial
reporting during the fiscal quarter ended May 31, 2003 that materially affected, or is reasonably likely to
materially affect, the internal control over financial reporting.
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PART IV

ITEM 15.  EXHIBITS, FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, SCHEDULES AND REPORTS ON FORM 8-K

(a) Financial Statements

The consolidated financial statements of the Company listed on the accompanying index
to consolidated financial statements are filed as part of this report.

The financial schedule required by Regulation S-X is filed at page S-1.

(b) Reports on Form 8-K

No Current Report on Form 8-K was filed by the Company covering an event during the fourth quarter
of  Fiscal 2003.  No amendments to previously filed Forms 8-K were filed during the fourth quarter of
fiscal  2003.

(c) Exhibits Required by Item 601 of Regulation S-K

The following exhibits are filed herewith or incorporated by reference:

Exhibit
Number Exhibit

2 Sale and exchange agreements dated September 13, 1999, by and among B & N Poultry, et al.,
and Cal-Maine Foods, Inc. (Omitted exhibits will be furnished supplementally to the
Commission upon  request) *******

3.1 Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation of the Registrant.*

3.2 By-Laws of the Registrant, as amended.*

4.1 See Exhibits 3.1 and 3.2 as to the rights of holders of the Registrant s common stock.

10.1 Amended and Restated Term Loan Agreement, dated as of May 29, 1990, between Cal-Maine
Foods, Inc. and Cooperative Centrale Raiffeisen - Boerenleenbank B.A., Rabobank
Nederland,   New York Branch, and Amended and Restated Revolving Credit Agreement among
Cal-Maine Foods, Inc., and Barclays Banks PLD (New York) and Cooperatieve Centrale
Raiffeisen-Borenleenbank B.A., dated as of 29 May 1990, and amendments thereto (without
exhibits).*

10.1(a) Amendment to Term Loan Agreement (see Exhibit 10.1) dated as of June 3, 1997 (without
exhibits). **

10.2 Note Purchase Agreement, dated as of November 10, 1993, between John Hancock Mutual Life
Insurance Company and Cal-Maine Foods, Inc., and amendments thereto (without exhibits).*

10.3 Loan Agreement, dated as of May 1, 1991, between Metropolitan Life Insurance Corporation
and Cal-Maine Foods, Inc., and amendments thereto (without exhibits).*

10.4 Employee Stock Ownership Plan, as Amended and Restated.* +

10.5 1993 Stock Option Plan, as Amended.* +



21

10.6 Wage Continuation Plan, dated as of January1, 1986, among R.K. Looper, B.J. Raines, and the
Registrant.* +

10.6(a) Amendment dated October 29, 1997 to Wage Continuation Plan, dated as of January 1, 1986,
between B.J. Raines and  the Registrant. ****+

10.7 Wage Continuation Plan, dated as of July 1, 1986, between Jack Self and the Registrant, as
amended on September 2, 1994.* +

10.8 Wage Continuation Plan, dated as of April 15, 1988, between Joe Wyatt and the Registrant.* +

10.9 Redemption Agreement, dated March 7, 1994, between the Registrant and Fred R. Adams, Jr.*

10.10 Note Purchase Agreement, dated December 18, 1997, among Cal-Maine Foods, Inc., Cal-Maine
Farms, Inc., Cal-Maine Egg Products, Inc., Cal-Maine Partnership, LTD, CMF of Kansas LLC
and First South Production Credit Association and Metropolitan Life Insurance Company
(without exhibits, except names of guarantors and forms of notes) ***

10.11 Wage Continuation Plan, dated as of January 14, 1999, among Stephen Storm, Charles F.
Collins, Bob Scott, and the Registrant  *****+

10.12 Secured note purchase agreement dated September 28, 1999 among Cal-Maine Foods, Inc.,
Cal-Maine Partnership, LTD, and John Hancock Mutual Life Insurance Company, and
John Hancock Variable Life Insurance Company (without exhibits, annexes and disclosure
schedules) ******

10.13 1999 Stock Option Plan  *********+

21 Subsidiaries of the Registrant

23 Consent of Independent Auditors

99.1 Certification of The Chief Executive Officer

99.2 Certification of The Chief Financial Officer

99.3 Written statement of The Chief Executive Officer and The Chief Financial Officer

+ Management contract or compensatory plan.

* Incorporated by reference to the same exhibit number in Registrant s Form S-1 Registration
Statement No. 333-14809.

** Incorporated by reference to the same exhibit number in Registrant s Form 10-K for fiscal year
ended May 31,1997.

*** Incorporated by reference to the same exhibit number in  Registrant s Form  10-Q for  the
quarter ended November 29, 1997.

**** Incorporated by reference to the same exhibit number in Registrant s Form 10-K for fiscal year
ended May 30, 1998.

***** Incorporated by reference to the same exhibit number in Registrant s Form 10-K for fiscal year
ended May 29, 1999.
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****** Incorporated by reference to the same exhibit number in Registrant s Form 10-Q for the
quarter ended November 27, 1999.

******* Incorporated by reference to the same exhibit number in Registrant s Form 8-K, dated
September 30, 1999.

******** Incorporated by reference to Registrant s form S-8 Registration Statement No. 333-39940,
dated June 23, 2000.

The Company agrees to file with the Securities and Exchange Commission, upon request, copies of any
instrument defining the rights of the holders of its consolidated long-term debt.

(d) Financial Statement Schedules Required by Regulation S-X

The financial statement schedule required by Regulation S-X is filed at page S-1.  All other schedules for which
provision is made in the applicable accounting regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission are not
required under the related instructions or are inapplicable and therefore have been omitted.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the
registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized, in
Jackson, Mississippi, on this 12th day of August, 2003.

CAL-MAINE FOODS, INC.

                    /s/ Fred R. Adams, Jr.                               
Fred R. Adams, Jr.
Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below
by the following persons on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated:

Signature Title          Date

                    /s/ Fred R. Adams, Jr.                  Chairman of the Board and August 12, 2003
            Fred R. Adams, Jr.   Chief Executive Officer

             (Principal Executive Officer)

                    /s/  Richard K. Looper                  Vice Chairman of the Board August 12, 2003
Richard K. Looper and Director

                    /s/  Adolphus B. Baker                 President and Director August 12, 2003
Adolphus B. Baker

                    /s/  Bobby J. Raines                      Vice President, Chief Financial August 12, 2003
Bobby J. Raines Officer, Treasurer, Secretary

and Director
(Principal Financial Officer)

                    /s/  Charles F. Collins                   Vice President, Controller August 12, 2003
Charles F. Collins and Director

(Principal Accounting Officer)

                    /s/  Jack B. Self                             Vice President and Director August 12, 2003
                          Jack B. Self

                    /s/  Joe M. Wyatt                           Vice President and Director August 12, 2003
Joe M. Wyatt

                    /s/  W. D.  Cox                               Director August 12, 2003
                          W.D. Cox

                   /s/   R.   Faser  Triplett                   Director August 12, 2003
R.  Faser Triplett

                   /s/  Letitia C. Hughes                      Director August 12, 2003
                         Letitia C. Hughes
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Report of Independent Auditors

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
Cal-Maine Foods, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Cal-Maine Foods, Inc. and subsidiaries as of May 31, 2003
and June 1, 2002, and the related consolidated statements of operations, stockholders’ equity and cash flows for each of the
three years in the period ended May 31, 2003. Our audits also included the financial statement schedule listed in the index at
Item˚14(a). These financial statements and schedule are the responsibility of the Company’s management.  Our responsibility is
to express an opinion on these financial statements and schedule based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States.  Those standards require
that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement.  An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements.  An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as
well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation.  We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our
opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated
financial position of Cal-Maine Foods, Inc. and subsidiaries at May 31, 2003 and June 1, 2002, and the consolidated results of
their operations and their cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended May 31, 2003, in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States. Also, in our opinion, the related financial statement schedule,
when considered in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole, presents fairly in all material respects the
information set forth therein.

/s/ Ernst & Young LLP

Jackson, Mississippi
July 18, 2003
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Cal-Maine Foods, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Consolidated Balance Sheets
(in thousands, except share amounts)

May 31 June 1
2003 2002

Assets
Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents $    6,092 $    4,878
Receivables:

Trade receivables, less allowance for doubtful
accounts of $1,158 in 2003 and $175 in 2002 18,914 15,536

Other 579 1,844
19,493 17,380

Recoverable federal income taxes 6,860 6,031
Inventories 51,005 46,108
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 1,729 911

Total current assets 85,179 75,308
Other assets:

Notes receivable and investments 7,254 7,116
Goodwill 3,147 3,147
Other 1,620 1,865

12,021 12,128
Property, plant and equipment, less accumulated

depreciation 138,192 142,218
Total assets $235,392 $229,654

Liabilities and stockholders’ equity
Current liabilities:

Note payable to bank $          — $   7,000
Trade accounts payable 21,386 18,467
Accrued wages and benefits 5,642 5,621
Accrued expenses and other liabilities 6,004 4,779
Current maturities of long-term debt 12,592 10,364
Deferred income taxes 11,806 11,767

Total current liabilities 57,430 57,998
Long-term debt, less current maturities 95,652 107,998
Other noncurrent liabilities 1,481 1,450
Deferred income taxes 14,744 7,748
Total liabilities 169,307 175,194
Stockholders’ equity:

Common stock, $.01 par value:
Authorized shares - 30,000,000
Issued and outstanding shares - 17,565,200 176 176

Class A common stock, $.01 par value:
Authorized shares — 1,200,000
Issued and outstanding shares - 1,200,000 12 12

Paid-in capital 18,784 18,784
Retained earnings 60,212 48,587
Common stock in treasury (7,000,812 shares in 2003 and 2002) (13,099) (13,099)

Total stockholders’ equity 66,085 54,460
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity $235,392 $229,654

See accompanying notes.



F-4

Cal-Maine Foods, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Consolidated Statements of Operations
(in thousands, except per share amounts)

Fiscal year ended
May 31 June 1 June 2

2003 2002 2001

Net sales $387,462 $326,171 $358,412
Cost of sales 315,169 291,767 299,417
Gross profit 72,293 34,404 58,995
Selling, general and administrative 46,029 42,332 42,337
Operating income (loss) 26,264 (7,928) 16,658

Other income (expense):
Interest expense (8,272) (8,580) (9,072)
Interest income 176 77 336
Equity in income (loss) of affiliates 442 (480) 415
Other, net 527 547 2,378

(7,127) (8,436) (5,943)
Income (loss) before income taxes 19,137 (16,364) 10,715
Income tax expense (benefit) 6,925 (5,790) 3,891
Net income (loss) $  12,212 $ (10,574) $    6,824

Net income (loss) per share:
Basic $     1.04 $       (.90) $        .57
Diluted $     1.03 $       (.90) $        .56

Weighted average shares outstanding:
Basic 11,764 11,764 12,051
Diluted 11,862 11,764 12,120

See accompanying notes.
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Cal-Maine Foods, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Consolidated Statements of Stockholders' Equity
(in thousands, except per share amounts)

Common Stock
Class A Class A Treasury Treasury Paid-in Retained

Shares Amount Shares Amount Shares Amount Capital Earnings Total

Balance at June 3, 2000 17,565 $176 1,200 $12 6,551 $(11,154) $18,784 $53,535 $61,353
Purchases of common stock

for treasury — — — — 313 (1,374) — — (1,374)
Cash dividends paid ($.05 per

common share) — — — — — — — (607) (607)
Net income for fiscal 2001 — — — — — — — 6,824 6,824

Balance at June 2, 2001 17,565 176 1,200 12 6,864 (12,528) 18,784 59,752 66,196
Purchases of common stock

For treasury - - - - 137 (571) - - (571)
Cash dividends paid ($.05 per

Common share) - - - - - - - (591) (591)
Net loss for fiscal 2002 - - - - - - - (10,574) (10,574)

Balance at June 1, 2002 17,565 176 1,200 12 7,001   (13,099) 18,784 48,587 54,460
Cash dividends paid ($.05 per

Common share) (587) (587)
Net income for fiscal 2003 12,212 12,212

Balance at May 31, 2003 17,565 $176 1,200 $12 7,001 $(13,099) $18,784 $60,212 $66,085

See accompanying notes.
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Cal-Maine Foods, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
(in thousands)

Fiscal year ended
May 31 June 1 June 2

2003 2002 2001
Cash flows from operating activities
Net income (loss) $12,212 $   (10,574) $   6,824
Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to net cash

provided by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization 16,624 17,310 17,542
Deferred income taxes 7,035 241 3,406
Equity in (income) loss of affiliates (442) 480 (415)
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment (327) (185) (201)

Change in operating assets and liabilities:
Receivables and other assets (3,670) (7,397) 2,976
Inventories (4,897) 1,014 (3,209)
Accounts payable, accrued expenses and other liabilities 4,196 (625) 3,500

Net cash provided by operating activities 30,731 264 30,423

Cash flows from investing activities
Purchases of property, plant and equipment (12,546) (15,552) (14,060)
Payments received on notes receivable and from investments 420 456 1,697
Increase in notes receivable and investments (215) (379) (1,331)
Net proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment 529 1,100 736
Net cash used in investing activities (11,812) (14,375) (12,958)

Cash flows from financing activities
Net borrowings (payments) on note payable to bank (7,000) 7,000 (7,500)
Long-term borrowings — 9,000 5,040
Principal payments on long-term debt (10,118) (8,978) (6,436)
Purchases of common stock for treasury — (571) (1,374)
Payments of dividends (587) (591) (607)
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities (17,705) 5,860 (10,877)
Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 1,214 (8,251) 6,588
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 4,878 13,129 6,541
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year $  6,092 $   4,878 $  13,129

See accompanying notes.
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Cal-Maine Foods, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(in thousands, except share and per share amounts)

May 31, 2003

1.  Significant Accounting Policies

Principles of Consolidation
The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Cal-Maine Foods, Inc. and its subsidiaries (the "Company") all
of which are wholly-owned. All significant intercompany transactions and accounts have been eliminated in consolidation.

Business
The Company is engaged in the production, processing and distribution of shell eggs and livestock operations.  The
Company s operations are significantly affected by the market price fluctuation of its principal products sold, shell eggs, and
the costs of its principal feed ingredients, corn and other grains.  

Primarily all of the Company’s sales are to wholesale egg buyers in the southeastern, southwestern, mid-western and mid-
Atlantic regions of the United States.  Credit is extended based upon an evaluation of each customer’s financial condition and
credit history and generally collateral is not required.  Credit losses have consistently been within management’s expectations.
One customer accounted for 12.8%, 13.3%, and 13.2% of the Company’s net sales in fiscal 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively.
Another customer accounted for 21.3% and 19.2% of the Company s net sales in fiscal 2003 and 2002, respectively.

Use of Estimates
The preparation of the consolidated financial statements in conformity with accounting principles general accepted in the United
States requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amount reported in the consolidated financial
statements and accompanying notes.  Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Cash Equivalents
The Company considers all highly liquid investments with a maturity of three months or less when purchased to be cash
equivalents.

Inventories
Inventories of eggs, feed, supplies and livestock are valued principally at the lower of cost (first-in, first-out method) or market.

The cost associated with flocks, consisting principally of chick purchases, feed, labor, contractor payments and overhead costs,
are accumulated during a growing period of approximately 18 weeks.  Flock costs are amortized over the productive lives of the
flocks, generally one to two years.

Property, Plant and Equipment
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost.  Depreciation is provided by the straight-line method over the estimated useful
lives, which are 15 to 25 years for buildings and improvements and 3 to 12 years for machinery and equipment.

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets
The Company continually reevaluates the carrying value of its long-lived assets for events or changes in circumstances which
indicate that the carrying value may not be recoverable. As part of this reevaluation, the Company estimates the future cash
flows expected to result from the use of the asset and its eventual disposal. If the sum of the expected future cash flows
(undiscounted and without interest charges) is less than the carrying amount of the asset, an impairment loss is recognized
through a charge to operations.

Intangible Assets
Included in other assets are loan acquisition costs which are amortized over the life of the related loan and franchise fees which
are amortized over ten years.

Goodwill
The Company adopted Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 142, Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets  (SFAS
142), effective June 3, 2001.  Under SFAS 142, goodwill and indefinite lived intangible assets are no longer amortized but are
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reviewed annually, or more frequently if impairment indicators arise, for impairment.  Accordingly, the Company ceased
amortization of goodwill in fiscal 2002.  Had the Company accounted for goodwill under SFAS No. 142 for fiscal 2001, the
Company s net income and income per share would have been $6,980 and $.58, respectively.

Revenue Recognition and Delivery Costs
Revenue is recognized when product is delivered to customers.

Costs to deliver product to customers are included in selling, general and administrative expenses in the accompanying
consolidated statements of operations and totaled $18,234, $17,954 and $19,036 in fiscal 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively.

Income Taxes
Income taxes have been provided using the liability method. Deferred income taxes reflect the net tax effects of temporary
differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for
income tax purposes.

Stock Based Compensation
The Company accounts for stock option grants in accordance with APB Opinion No. 25, Accounting for Stock Issued to
Employees".

The following table illustrates the effect on net income and earnings per share if the Company had applied the fair value
recognition provisions of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 123, "Accounting for Stock-Based
Compensation," which require compensation cost for all stock-based employee compensation plans to be recognized based on
the use of a fair value method (in thousands, except per share amounts):

Fiscal year ended
May 31 June 1 June 2

2003 2002 2001

Net income (loss) $12,212 $(10,574) $6,824
Add:  Stock-based employee compensation expense included in

reported net income 716 (154) 243
Deduct:  Total stock-based employee compensation expense

determined under fair value-based method for all awards 422 8 239
Pro forma net income (loss) $12,506 $(10,736) $6,828

Earnings per share:
Basic  as reported $   1.04 $      (.90) $   .57
Basic  pro forma 1.06 (.91) .57

Diluted  as reported $   1.03 $      (.90) $   .56
Diluted  pro forma 1.05 (.91) .56

Net Income (Loss) per Common Share
Basic earnings (loss) per share are based on the weighted average common shares outstanding.  Diluted earnings (loss) per share
include any dilutive effects of options and warrants.

Impact of Recently Issued Accounting Standards
In the first quarter of fiscal 2003, the Company adopted Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 144, Accounting
for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets  (SFAS No. 144).  SFAS No. 144 supersedes Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards No. 121, Accounting for the Impairment of Long-Lived Assets and for Long-Lived Assets to Be
Disposed of,  (SFAS No. 121), however, it retains the fundamental provisions of SFAS No. 121 related to the recognition and
measurement of the impairment of long-lived assets to be held and used.   In addition, SFAS No. 144 provides more
guidance on estimating cash flows when performing a recoverability test, requires that a long-lived asset to be disposed other
than by sale (e.g., abandoned) be classified as held and used  until it is disposed of, and establishes more restrictive criteria to
classify an asset as held for sale.   The adoption of SFAS No. 144 had no effect on the Company s consolidated results of
operations or financial position.

In January 2003, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued Interpretation No. 46, "Consolidation of Variable Interest
Entities, an interpretation of Accounting Research Bulletin No. 51" (the Interpretation). The Interpretation requires the
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consolidation of entities in which an enterprise absorbs a majority of the entity s expected losses, receives a majority of the
entity s expected residual returns, or both, as a result of ownership, contractual or other financial interests in the entity.
Currently, entities are generally consolidated by an enterprise when it has a controlling financial interest through ownership of a
majority voting interest in the entity.

The Company has investments in various affiliates (see Note 2) established for the purpose of production, processing, and
distribution of shell eggs. These entities are primarily funded with financing from third party lenders, which is secured by first
liens on the assets of the entities. The creditors of the entities do not have recourse to the Company, except for one entity for
which the Company guarantees 50% of its debt.  The Company accounts for these investments on the equity method of
accounting, recording its share of the net income or loss. The Company has the ability to exercise significant influence over
operating and financial policies. However, the Company does not have a controlling interest in the respective entities.  At
May˚31, 2003, the Company s aggregate net investment in these entities totaled $6 million. The portion of the debt guaranteed
was $7.2 million at May 31, 2003. These amounts represent the Company s maximum exposure to loss at May 31, 2003 as a
result of its involvement with these entities.  The Company is currently evaluating the effects of the issuance of the
Interpretation on the accounting for its ownership interests in these entities.    

Fiscal Year
The Company’s fiscal year-end is on the Saturday nearest May 31, which was May 31, 2003, June 1, 2002 (52 weeks) and June
2,˚2001 (52 weeks),for the most recent three fiscal years.  

2.  Investment in Affiliates

The Company owns 50% of Cumberland Milling JV, Specialty Eggs LLC and Delta Egg Farm, LLC ("Delta Egg") and 44%
of American Egg Products, Inc. at May 31, 2003.  The Company owned 50% of BCM Egg Company ("BCM") a partnership,
through May 2000, at which time the Company acquired the other 50% partnership interest.  Investment in affiliates, recorded
using the equity method of accounting, totaled $6,042 and $5,230 at May 31, 2003 and June 1, 2002, respectively.  Equity in
income or (loss) of $442, ($480) and $415, from these entities have been included in the consolidated statements of operations
for fiscal 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively.  

The Company is a guarantor of 50% of Delta Egg’s long-term debt, which totaled approximately $14.4 million at May 31,
2003.  Delta Egg’s long-term debt is secured by substantially all fixed assets of Delta Egg and is due in monthly installments
through fiscal 2009.  Delta Egg is engaged in the production, processing and distribution of shell eggs.  The other 50% owner
also guarantees the debt.  The guarantee arose when Delta Egg borrowed funds to construct its production and processing
facility in 1999.  The guarantee would be required if Delta Egg is not able to pay the debt.  Management of the Company
believes this possibility is unlikely because Delta Egg is profitable and is now well capitalized.

3.  Inventories

Inventories consisted of the following:

May 31 June 1
2003 2002

Flocks $33,070 $  30,836
Eggs 2,752 2,257
Feed and supplies 12,597 10,073
Livestock 2,586 2,942

$51,005 $  46,108
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4.  Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment consisted of the following:

May 31 June 1
2003 2002

Land and improvements $  33,285 $  32,846
Buildings and improvements 97,175 91,567
Machinery and equipment 129,893 128,675
Construction-in-progress 7,318 5,608

267,671 258,696
Less accumulated depreciation 129,479 116,478

$138,192 $142,218

Depreciation expense was $16,370, $17,067 and $17,014 in fiscal 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively.

5.  Leases

Future minimum payments under noncancelable operating leases that have initial or remaining noncancelable terms in excess of
one year at May 31, 2003 are as follows:

2004 $  9,064
2005 8,433
2006 7,996
2007 7,606
2008 5,744
Thereafter 2,687
Total minimum lease payments $41,530

Substantially all of the leases provide that the Company pay taxes, maintenance, insurance and certain other operating expenses
applicable to the leased assets.  The Company has guaranteed under certain operating leases the residual value of transportation
equipment at the expiration of the leases.  Rent expense was $9,457, $9,122 and $9,622 in fiscal 2003, 2002 and 2001,
respectively.  Included in rent expense are vehicle rents totaling $2,336, $2,444 and $2,892 in fiscal 2003, 2002 and 2001,
respectively.  
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6.  Credit Facilities and Long-Term Debt

Long-term debt consisted of the following:
May 31 June 1

2003 2002

Note payable at 6.7%; due in monthly installments
of $100, plus interest, maturing in 2009 $  13,200 $   14,400

Note payable at a variable rate of 4.75% at
June 1, 2002; due in quarterly installments
of $350, plus interest, maturing in 2007 9,329 10,850

Note payable at 8.26%; due in monthly installments of
$155 beginning in 2004, including interest, maturing
in 2015 16,000 16,000

Series A Senior Secured Notes at 6.87%; due in annual
principal installments of $1,917 beginning in
December 2002 through 2009 with interest due
semi-annually 9,583 11,500

Series B Senior Secured Notes at 7.18%; due in annual
principal installments of $2,143 beginning in
December 2003 through 2009 with interest due
semi-annually 15,000 15,000

Industrial revenue bonds at 7.21%; due in monthly
installments of $120, including interest,
maturing in 2011 10,853 11,528

Note payable at 7.64%; due in monthly installments of
$114, including interest, maturing in 2015 6,159 7,028

Note payable at 7.75%; due in monthly installments of
$55, plus interest, maturing in 2009 3,800 4,460

Note payable at 8.25%; due in monthly installments of
$79, including interest, maturing in 2004 751 1,596

Note payable at 7.56%; due in monthly installments of
$75 beginning in July 2001, plus interest,
maturing in 2009 11,600 12,500

Note payable at 7%; due in quarterly installments of
$107, plus interest, maturing in 2009 4,716 5,143

Note payable at 7.1%; due in quarterly installments of
    $214, plus interest, maturing in 2008 4,502 5,358
Note payable at 7.5%; due in monthly installments of
    $50, including interest, maturing in 2011 2,614 2,841
Other 137 158

108,244 118,362
Less current maturities 12,592 10,364

$  95,652 $107,998

The aggregate annual fiscal year maturities of long-term debt at May 31, 2003 are as follows:

2004 $  12,592
2005 12,723
2006 12,566
2007 16,354
2008 12,363
Thereafter 41,646

$108,244

The Company has a $35,000 line of credit with three banks.  The line of credit, which expires on December 31, 2005, is
limited in availability based upon accounts receivable and inventories.  The Company had $33.4 million available to borrow
under the line of credit at May 31, 2003.  Borrowings under the line of credit bear interest at 3% above the federal funds rate.
Facilities fees of 0.5% per annum are payable quarterly on the unused portion of the line.
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Substantially all trade receivables and inventories collateralize the line of credit and property, plant and equipment collateralize
the long-term debt.  The Company is required, by certain provisions of the loan agreements, to maintain minimum levels of
working capital and net worth; to limit dividends, capital expenditures and additional long-term borrowings; and to maintain
various current, debt-to-equity and interest coverage ratios.   Additionally, the chief executive officer of the Company, or his
family, must maintain ownership of not less than 50% of the outstanding voting stock of the Company.  Subsequent to May
31, 2003, the Company obtained amendments to revise certain financial covenant requirements of its debt agreements and
expects to be in compliance with such requirements through fiscal 2004.

Interest of $8,435, $8,915 and $8,966 was paid during fiscal 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively. Interest of $419, $316 and
$347 was capitalized for construction of certain facilities during fiscal 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively.

7.  Employee Benefit Plans

The Company maintains a medical plan that is qualified under Section 401(a) of the Internal Revenue Code and not subject to
tax under present income tax laws.  Under its plan, the Company self-insures, in part, coverage for substantially all full-time
employees with coverage by insurance carriers for certain stop-loss provisions for losses greater than $100 for each occurrence.
The Company’s expenses, including accruals for incurred but not reported claims, were approximately $6,258, $4,790 and
$4,570 in fiscal 2003, 2002, and 2001, respectively.

The Company has a 401(k) plan which covers substantially all employees.  Participants in the Plan may contribute up to the
maximum allowed by Internal Revenue Service regulations.  The Company does not make contributions to the 401(k)plan.

The Company has an employee stock ownership plan (ESOP) that covers substantially all employees.  The Company makes
contributions to the ESOP of 3% of participants’ compensation, plus an additional amount determined at the discretion of the
Board of Directors.  Contributions may be made in cash or the Company’s common stock.  The contributions vest 20%
annually beginning with the participant’s third year of service.  Beginning in January 2001, company contributions to the
ESOP vest immediately.  The Company’s contributions to the plan were $2,056, $1,183 and $968 in fiscal 2003, 2002 and
2001, respectively.

The Company has deferred compensation agreements with certain officers for payments to be made over specified periods
beginning when the officers reach age 65 or over as specified in the agreements.  Amounts accrued for these agreements are
based upon deferred compensation earned over the estimated remaining service life of each officer.  Deferred compensation
expense totaled approximately $50 in fiscal 2003, 2002 and 2001.  

8.  Stock Option Plan

The Company has elected to follow APB No. 25 and related Interpretations in accounting for its employee stock options because, as
discussed below, the alternative fair value accounting provided for under Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 123,
Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation , (SFAS No. 123), requires use of option valuation models that were not developed

for use in valuing employee stock options.

Pro forma information regarding net income and net income per share is required by SFAS No. 123, and has been determined as if
the Company had accounted for its employee stock options under the fair value method of that Statement.  The fair value for these
options was estimated at the date of grant using a Black-Scholes option pricing model with the following weighted-average
assumptions for fiscal 2003 and 2001:  risk-free interest rate of 3% and 7%, respectively; dividend yield of 1%; volatility factor of
the expected market price of the Company s common stock of .39 and .29, respectively, and a weighted-average expected life of the
options of 5 years.  No options were granted by the Company during fiscal 2002.  The weighted-average fair value of options
granted during fiscal 2003 and 2001 was $1.43 and $1.05, respectively.  
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A summary of the Company s stock option activity and related information is as follows:

Shares Exercise Price

Outstanding at June 3, 2000 514,000 3.06
Granted 15,000 4.19
Exercised (26,000) 3.00
Forfeited (10,000) 3.00

Outstanding at June 2, 2001 493,000 3.10
Exercised (4,000) 3.00
Forfeited (8,000) 3.00

Outstanding at June 1, 2002 481,000 3.10
Granted 71,000 4.05
Exercised (8,400) 3.38

Outstanding at May 31, 2003 543,600 3.22

The Company has reserved 800,000 shares under its 1993 Stock Option Plan. The options have ten-year terms and vest
annually over five years beginning one year from the grant date.  At May 31, 2003, no shares were available for grant under the
1993 plan.

The Company has reserved 500,000 shares under its 1999 Stock Option Plan, all of which were granted to officers and key
employees in fiscal 2000.  Each stock option granted under the 1999 Stock Option Plan was accompanied by the grant of a Tandem
Stock Appreciation Right ("TSAR").  The options and TSARs have ten-year terms and vest annually over five years beginning one
year from the grant date.  Upon exercise of a stock option, the related TSAR is also considered to be exercised, and the holder will
receive a cash payment from the Company equal to the excess of the fair market value of the Company’s common stock and the
option exercise price.  Compensation expense (benefit) of $1,119, $(240) and $380 applicable to this plan was recognized in fiscal
2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively.

The weighted average remaining contractual life of the options outstanding was 7 years at May 31, 2003, 6 years at June 1, 2002
and 8 years at June 2, 2001.  Of the total options outstanding, 275,600, 203,800 and 110,000 were exercisable at May 31, 2003,
June 1, 2002 and June̊ 2, 2001, respectively.

9.  Income Taxes

Income tax expense (benefit) consisted of the following:

Fiscal year ended
May 31 June 1 June 2

2003 2002 2001

Current:
Federal $    (81) $(6,031) $   485
State (29) - —

(110) (6,031) 485

Deferred:
Federal 6,579 395 3,053
State 456 (154) 353

7,035 241 3,406
$6,925 $(5,790) $3,891
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Significant components of the Company’s deferred tax liabilities were as follows:

May 31 June 1
2003 2002

Deferred tax liabilities:
Property, plant and equipment $12,697 $12,151
Cash basis temporary differences 2,389 2,548
Inventories 12,837 12,145
Other 2,683 1,842

Total deferred tax liabilities 30,606 28,686

Deferred tax assets:
Federal and state net operating
loss carryforwards 416 5,994

Other 3,640 3,177
Total deferred tax assets 4,056 9,171
Net deferred tax liabilities $26,550 $19,515

Effective May 29, 1988, the Company could no longer use cash basis accounting for its farming subsidiary because of tax law
changes.  The Taxpayer Relief Act of 1997 provides that taxes on the cash basis temporary differences as of that date are
generally payable over 20 years beginning in fiscal 1999 or in full in the first fiscal year in which there is a change in
ownership control.  The Company uses the farm-price method for valuing inventories for income tax purposes.

The differences between income tax expense (benefit) at the Company’s effective income tax rate and income tax expense
(benefit) at the statutory federal income tax rate were as follows:

Fiscal year ended
May 31 June 1 June 2

2003 2002 2001

Statutory federal income tax (benefit) $6,507 $(5,564) $3,643
State income taxes (benefit), net 301 (102) 233
Other, net (benefit) 117 (124) 15

$6,925 $(5,790) $3,891

Federal and state income taxes of $1,610, $100 and $219 were paid in fiscal 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively.  Federal and
state income taxes of $1,377, $164 and $4,409 were refunded in fiscal 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively.  The Company has
net operating loss carryforwards for state income tax purposes of $37,300, which expire at various dates in fiscal 2015 through
2022.

10.  Other Matters

The carrying amounts in the consolidated balance sheet for cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable, notes receivable and
investments and accounts payable approximate their fair values. The fair value of the Company’s long-term debt is estimated to
be $111.2 million.  The fair values for notes receivable and long-term debt are estimated using discounted cash flow analysis,
based on the Company’s current incremental borrowing rates for similar arrangements.

The Company s interest expense is sensitive to changes in the general level of U.S. interest rates.  The Company maintains
certain of its debt as fixed rate in nature to mitigate the impact of fluctuations in interest rates.  Under its current policies, the
Company does not use interest rate derivative instruments to manage its exposure to interest rate changes.  A one percent (1%)
adverse move (decrease) in interest rates would adversely affect the net fair value of the Company s debt by $4.1 million at
May 31, 2003.  The Company is a party to no other market risk sensitive instruments requiring disclosure.

The Company is the defendant in certain legal actions.  It is the opinion of management, based on advice of legal counsel, that
the outcome of these actions will not have a material adverse effect on the Company’s consolidated financial position or
operations.
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In Fiscal 2003 and 2002, the Company recognized $9,466 and $1,862, respectively, in vendor settlements pertaining to
overcharges for vitamins purchased by the Company over a number of years.  The settlements are reflected in the accompanying
consolidated financial statements as a reduction of cost of sales.

On July 11, 2003, Cal-Maine’s Board of Directors voted to explore the possibility of the Company becoming privately held.
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SCHEDULE II - VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS
Years ended May 31, 2003, June 1, 2002 and June 2, 2001

(in thousands)

Balance at Charged to Write-off Balance at
Beginning of Cost and of End of

Description Period Expense Accounts Period

Year ended May 31, 2003:
Allowance for doubtful accounts $175 $1,279 $296 $1,158

Year ended June 1, 2002:
Allowance for doubtful accounts $590 $(5) $410 $175

Year ended June 2, 2001:
Allowance for doubtful accounts $305 $678 $393 $590
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Exhibit 21

Percentage of Outstanding Stock
Place of Incorporation or Ownership Interest Held

              Name of Subsidiary                      or Organization                             by Registrant                 

Cal-Maine Farms, Inc. Delaware 100%
Southern Equipment Distributors, Inc. Mississippi 100%
South Texas Applicators, Inc. Delaware 100%
Cal-Maine Partnership, Ltd. Texas   (1)
CMF of Kansas, LLC Delaware   (2)
___________________________

(1) Limited partnership in which Cal-Maine Foods, Inc. has a 1% General Partner interest and Cal-Maine
Farms, Inc. has a 99% Limited Partner interest.

(2) Limited liability company of which Cal-Maine Foods, Inc. and Cal-Maine Farms, Inc. are members and
have 99% and 1% interests, respectively.
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Exhibit 23

Consent of Independent Auditors

We consent to the incorporation by reference in the Registration Statement (Form S-8 No. 333-20169) pertaining to the Cal-
Maine Foods, Inc. 1993 Stock Option Plan and in the Registration Statement (Form S-8 No. 333-29940) pertaining to the
Cal-Maine Foods, Inc. 1999 Stock Option Plan of our report dated July 18, 2003, with respect to the consolidated financial
statements and schedule of Cal-Maine Foods, Inc. included in this Annual Report (Form 10-K) for the year ended May 31,
2003.

/s/  ERNST & YOUNG LLP

Jackson, Mississippi
August 8, 2003
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Exhibit 31.1

Certification of Chief Executive Officer
Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act and Rule 13a-14(a)

or 15d-14(a) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934

I, Fred R. Adams, Jr., CEO, certify that:

1. I have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 10-K of Cal-Maine Foods, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact
necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not
misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in
all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods
presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and
procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e). for the registrant and have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed
under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated
subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is
being prepared;

b) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our
conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of  the period covered by
this report based on such evaluation;  and

c) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the
registrant s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has
materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant s internal control over financial reporting;
and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over
financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons
performing the equivalent functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial
reporting which are reasonably likely to  adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and
report financial information ; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the
registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.

/s   /  Fred R. Adams, Jr.                                           
Fred R. Adams, Jr.
Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer

Date :     August 12, 2003



S-6

Exhibit 31.2

Certification of Chief Financial Officer
Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act and Rule 13a-14(a)

or 15d-14(a) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934

I, Bobby J. Raines, CFO, certify that:

1. I have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 10-K of Cal-Maine Foods, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact
necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not
misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in
all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods
presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and
procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e). for the registrant and have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed
under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated
subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is
being prepared;

b) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our
conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of  the period covered by
this report based on such evaluation;  and

c) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the
registrant s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has
materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant s internal control over financial reporting;
and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over
financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons
performing the equivalent functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial
reporting which are reasonably likely to  adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and
report financial information ; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the
registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.

/s   /  Bobby J. Raines                                               
Bobby J. Raines
Vice President, Chief Financial Officer, Treasurer and Secretary

Date:  August 12, 2003
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Exhibit 32

Written Statement of the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer
Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. ⁄1350

Solely for the purposes of complying with 18 U.S.C. ⁄1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of
2002, we, the undersigned Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer of Cal-Maine Foods, Inc. (the Company ),
hereby certify, based on their knowledge, that the Annual Report on Form 10-K of the Company for the year ended May 31,
2003 (the Report ) fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 and that
information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of
the Company.

/s   /  Fred R. Adams, Jr.                               
Fred R. Adams, Jr.
Chief Executive Officer

/s   /  Bobby J. Raines   ____________________
Bobby  J. Raines
Chief Financial Officer

Date:  August 12, 2003



SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
Washington, D.C.

FORM 10-K/A No. 1

Pursuant to Section 13 or 15(d) of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934

Amendment No. 1 to Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended May 31, 2003

Cal-Maine Foods Inc.
____________________________________________________________________________

(Exact name of Registrant as specified in its charter)

                     Delaware                              000-04892                         64-0500378           
(State of Other Jurisdiction of Incorporation) (Commission File Number) (IRS Employer Identification Number)

3320 Woodrow Wilson Avenue,
             Jackson, Mississippi                      39207                

(Address of Principal Executive Offices) (Zip Code)

Registrant s telephone number, including area code:  (601) 948-6813

The undersigned registrant hereby includes the following portions of its Annual Report
on Form 10-K for the year ended May 31, 2003, as set forth in the pages attached hereto:

Part I Item 1. Business

Part II Item 7. Management s Discussion and Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operations

Part III Item 10. Directors and Executive Officers of the Registrant
Item 11. Executive Compensation
Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and

Management and Related Stockholders Matters
Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has
duly caused this amendment to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly
authorized.

Cal-Maine Foods Inc.

Date: November 10, 2003 By: /s/   Charles F. Collins
Charles F. Collins,
Vice President & Controller
(Principal Accounting Officer)
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Cal-Maine Foods Inc.

AMENDMENT NO. 1 TO ANNUAL REPORT ON FORM 10-K
FOR THE YEAR ENDED May 31, 2003

PART I

ITEM 1.  BUSINESS

General

Cal-Maine Foods, Inc. ( Cal-Maine  or the Company ) was incorporated in Delaware in 1969.  The
Company s primary business is the production, cleaning, grading, and packaging of fresh shell eggs for sale to
shell egg retailers. Shell egg sales, including feed sales to outside egg producers, accounted for approximately
99% of the Company s net sales in fiscal 2003 and 98% in fiscal 2002. The Company is the largest producer and
distributor of fresh shell eggs in the United States and during fiscal 2003, had sales of approximately 571 million
dozen shell eggs.  This volume represents approximately 13% of all shell eggs sold in the United States.  The
Company markets the majority of its eggs in 26 states, primarily in the southwestern, southeastern, mid-western
and mid-Atlantic regions of the United States.

The Company s principal executive offices are located at 3320 Woodrow Wilson Avenue, Jackson,
Mississippi 39209, and its telephone number is 601-948-6813.  Except as otherwise indicated by the context,
references herein to "the Company  or Cal-Maine  include all subsidiaries of the Company.

Possible Going Private  Transaction

As reported in the Company s Form 8-K Current Report dated July 11, 2003, at a special meeting held on
that date Cal-Maine s Board of Directors unanimously voted to explore the possibility of the Company becoming
privately owned.  At the same meeting, the Board also appointed a Special Committee comprised of three
independent directors to consider the feasibility of going private  and, in that regard, to ensure that the best
interests of the Company and its shareholders would be served by such a course of action.

The members of the Special Committee are W.D. Cox, Letitia C. Hughes and R. Faser Triplett, M.D.
Following their appointment, the Committee members held an organizational meeting and elected Dr. Triplett as
the Committee s Chairman.  In addition, the Committee decided to interview certain investment banking firms for
purposes of obtaining an opinion as to the fairness from a financial standpoint of the price to be paid by the
Company for shares to be purchased in a going private transaction, as well as to assist the Committee in
evaluating alternative methods of going private.  In addition, the Committee selected and engaged its own
independent counsel to advise and represent the Committee on related legal matters.

On July 24, 2003, after considering several investment banking firms, the Special Committee engaged
Houlihan Lokey Howard & Zukin Financial Advisors, Inc. ( Houlihan Lokey ) to serve as investment adviser to
the Committee in connection with the possible going private transaction.  The selection of Houlihan Lokey was
reported by the Committee to the full Board of Directors of the Company at a regular quarterly Directors meeting
held the same day.  Houlihan Lokey will report to the Special Committee and its final written opinion will be
addressed to the full Board of Directors of the Company.  All expenses of a going private transaction, including
Houlihan Lokey s fee, will be paid by the Company.
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It is presently contemplated that a going private transaction would be effected by means of a reverse
split  of the Company s Common Stock.  This would require an amendment of the Company s Certificate of
Incorporation that would result in fractional shares that would be purchased by the Company for cash. If a going
private transaction is effected, as to which the Company can make no representation or prediction, the reporting
and other applicable requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 will no longer apply to the Company or
to any officer, director or controlling stockholder of the Company.

(On November 6, 2003, the Company issued a press release announcing the termination of the going
private transaction.)

Growth Strategy and Acquisitions

The Company has for many years pursued a growth strategy focused on the acquisition of existing shell
egg production and processing facilities, as well as the construction of new and more efficient facilities.  Since the
beginning of fiscal 1989, the Company has consummated ten acquisitions, adding an aggregate of 21 million
layers to its capacity, and built six new in-line  shell egg production and processing facilities and one pullet
growing facility, adding 6.5 million layers and 1.5 million growing pullets to its capacity.  Each of the new shell
egg production facilities generally provides for the processing of approximately 400 cases of shell eggs per hour.
These increases in capacity have been accompanied by the retirement of older and less efficient facilities and a
reduction in eggs produced by contract producers.  The in-line  facilities result in the gathering, cleaning,
grading and packaging of shell eggs by less labor-intensive, more efficient, mechanical means.

As a result of the Company s strategy, the Company s total flock, including pullets, layers and breeders,
has increased from approximately 6.8 million at May 28, 1988 to an average of approximately 22.7 million for
each of the past five fiscal years.  Also, the number of dozens of shell eggs sold has increased from approximately
117 million in the fiscal year ended May 28, 1988 to an average of approximately 525.3 million over the past five
fiscal years.  Net sales amounted to $387.5 million in fiscal 2003 compared to net sales of $69.9 million in fiscal
1988.

The Company s acquisitions and construction of larger facilities, described in the tables below, reflect the
continuing concentration of shell egg production in the United States in a decreasing number of shell egg
producers.  The Company believes that a continuation of that concentration trend may result in the reduced
cyclicality of shell egg prices, but no assurance can be given in that regard.
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Acquisitions of Egg Production and Processing Facilities

Fiscal Year (1) Seller Location Layers Acquired

1989 Egg City, Inc. Arkansas 1,300,000
1990 Sunny Fresh Foods, Inc. (2) 7,500,000
1991 Sunnyside Eggs, Inc. North Carolina 1,800,000
1994 Wayne Detling Farms Ohio 1,500,000
1995 A & G Farms Kentucky 1,000,000
1997 Sunbest Farms Arkansas 600,000
1997 Southern Empire Egg Farm, Inc. Georgia 1,300,000
1998 J&S Farms / Savannah Valley Egg Georgia 900,000
1999 Hudson Brothers, Inc. Kentucky 1,200,000
2000 Smith Farms Texas/Arkansas 3,900,000

Total 21,000,000
(1)  The Company s fiscal year ends on the Saturday closest to May 31.

(2)  New Mexico, Kansas, Texas, Alabama, Oklahoma, Arkansas and North Carolina

Construction of Egg Production, Pullet Growing and Processing Facilities (1)

Fiscal Year Completed Location Layer Capacity Pullet Capacity

1990 Mississippi 1,000,000 200,000
1992 Louisiana 1,000,000
1992 Mississippi 500,000
1994 Mississippi 1,000,000
1996 Texas 1,000,000 250,000
1999 Kansas 1,250,000 250,000
2001 Texas 1,300,000 300,000

Total 6,550,000 1,500,000

(1) Does not include construction in Guthrie, Kentucky, commenced in fiscal 2001, and to be completed
in the first or second quarter of fiscal 2004 at an estimated cost of $18.0 million, adding
approximately 1,500,000 layer capacity.

Although it has made no acquisitions in the past three fiscal years, the Company proposes to continue to
pursue opportunities for the acquisition of other companies engaged in the production and sale of shell eggs.
Federal anti-trust laws require regulatory approval of acquisitions that exceed certain threshold levels of
significance.  Also, the Company is subject to federal and state laws generally prohibiting anti-competitive
conduct.  Because the shell egg production and distribution industry is so fragmented, the Company believes that
its sales of shell eggs during its last fiscal year represented only approximately 13% of domestic shell egg sales
notwithstanding that it is the largest producer and distributor of shell eggs in the United States based on
independently prepared industry statistics.  The Company believes that regulatory approval of any future
acquisitions either will not be required, or, if required, that such approvals will be obtained.

The construction of new, more efficient production and processing facilities is an integral part of the
Company s growth strategy.  Any such construction will require compliance with applicable environmental laws
and regulations, including the receipt of permits, that could cause schedule delays, although the Company has not
experienced any significant delays in the past.
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Shell Eggs

Production.  The Company s operations are fully integrated. At its facilities, it hatches chicks, grows
pullets, manufactures feed and produces and distributes shell eggs.  Company-owned facilities accounted for
approximately 87% of its total fiscal 2003 egg production, with the balance attributable to contract producers used
by the Company.

Under Cal-Maine s arrangements with its contract producers, the Company owns the entire flock,
furnishes all feed and supplies, owns the shell eggs produced, and assumes all market risks.  The contract
producers own their facilities and are paid a fee based on production with incentives for performance.

The commercial production of shell eggs requires a source of baby chicks for laying flock replacement.
The Company produces approximately 98% of its chicks in its own hatcheries and obtains the balance from
commercial sources.  Feed for the laying flocks is produced by Company-owned and operated mills located in
Arkansas, Georgia, Kentucky, Louisiana, Mississippi, New Mexico, Ohio, Oklahoma, South Carolina, Tennessee,
and Texas.  All ingredients necessary for feed production are readily available in the open market and most are
purchased centrally from Jackson, Mississippi.  Approximately 97% of the feed for Company flocks is
manufactured at feed mills owned and operated by the Company.  Poultry feed is formulated using a computer
model to determine the least-cost ration to meet the nutritional needs of the flocks.  Although most feed
ingredients are purchased on an as-needed basis, from time-to-time, when deemed advantageous, the Company
purchases ingredients in advance with a delayed delivery of several weeks or a few months.

Feed cost represents the largest element of the Company s farm egg production cost, ranging from 54% to
56% of total cost in the last five years, or an average of approximately 55%.  Although feed ingredients are
available from a number of sources, the Company has little, if any, control over the prices of the ingredients it
purchases, which are affected by weather and by various supply and demand factors.  Increases in feed costs not
accompanied by increases in the selling price of eggs can have a material adverse effect on the results of the
Company s operations.  However, higher feed costs may encourage producers to reduce production, possibly
resulting in higher egg prices.  Alternatively, low feed costs can encourage industry overproduction, possibly
resulting in lower egg prices.  Historically, the Company has tended to have higher profit margins when feed costs
are higher.  However, this may not be the case in the future.

After the eggs are produced, they are cleaned, graded, and packaged.  Substantially all of the Company-
owned farms have modern in-line  facilities that mechanically gather, clean, grade and package the eggs
produced.  The increased use of in-line facilities has generated significant cost savings as compared to the cost of
eggs produced from non-in-line facilities.  In addition to greater efficiency, the in-line facilities produce a higher
percentage of grade A eggs, which sell at higher prices.  Eggs produced on farms owned by contractors are
brought to the Company s processing plants where they are cleaned, graded and packaged.

The Company s egg production activities are subject to risks inherent in the agriculture industry, such as
weather conditions and disease factors.  These risks are not within the Company s control and could have a
material adverse effect on its operations.  Also, the marketability of the Company s shell eggs is subject to risks
such as possible changes in food consumption opinions and practices reflecting perceived health concerns.

The Company operates in a cyclical industry with total demand that is generally level and a product that is
price-inelastic.  Thus, small increases in production or decreases in demand can have a large adverse effect on
prices and vice-versa.  However, economic conditions in the egg industry are expected to exhibit less cyclicality
in the future.  The industry is concentrating into fewer but stronger hands, which should help lessen the extreme
cyclicality of the past.
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The shell egg production and processing industry has been characterized by a growing concentration of
production. In 2002, 62 producers with one million or more layers owned 79% of the 279 million total U.S.
layers, compared with the 56 producers with one million or more layers owning 64% of the 232 million total U.S.
layers in 1990, and 61 producers with one million or more layers owning 56% of the 248.0 million total U.S.
layers in 1985.  The Company believes that a continuation of that concentration trend may result in the reduced
cyclicality of shell egg prices, but no assurance can be given in that regard.

Marketing.  Of the 571 million dozen shell eggs sold by the Company in the fiscal year ended May 31,
2003, 441 million were produced by Company flocks.

Sales of shell eggs primarily are made to national and regional supermarket chains that buy direct from
the Company.  During fiscal 2003, two customers accounted for more than 10% of net sales. A major Texas
grocery retailer, H.E.Butt Grocery Company, accounted for 12.8% of net sales and two affiliated national
retailers, Wal-Mart and Sam s Club, on a combined basis accounted for 21.3% of net sales.  The Company has no
long-term contracts with any of these customers.  The Company s top 10 customers accounted for 63% of net
sales in the aggregate.  The majority of eggs sold are merchandised on a daily or short-term basis.  Most sales to
established accounts are on open account with terms ranging from seven to 30 days.  Although the Company has
established long-term relationships with many of its customers, they are free to acquire shell eggs from other
sources.

The Company sells its shell eggs at prices generally related to independently quoted wholesale market
prices. Over 90% of all eggs sold in the U.S  to retail and food service customers are sold at prices related to the
Urner Barry Company ( Urner Barry ) wholesale quotation for shell eggs.  The quotes are determined by Urner
Barry by canvassing sellers and buyers of various commodities. Urner Barry also provides quotations for the
chicken, turkey, fish and beef industries.  Wholesale prices are subject to wide fluctuations.  The prices of the
Company s shell eggs reflect fluctuations in the quoted market, and the results of the Company s shell egg
operations are materially affected by changes in market quotations.  Egg prices also reflect a number of economic
conditions, such as the supply of eggs and the level of demand, which, in turn, are influenced by a number of
factors that the Company cannot control.  No representation can be made as to the future level of prices.

Shell eggs are perishable.  Consequently, the Company maintains very low shell egg inventories, usually
consisting of approximately four days of production.  Retail sales of shell eggs are greatest during the fall and
winter months and lowest during the summer months.  Prices for shell eggs fluctuate in response to seasonal
demand factors and a natural increase in egg production during the spring and early summer.  The Company
generally experiences lower sales and net income, and generally losses, in its fourth and first fiscal quarters
ending in May and August, respectively.

According to U.S. Department of Agriculture ( USDA ) reports, the annual per capita consumption of
shell eggs in the United States since 1990 has ranged from 234 to 253, averaging 240, with the peak consumption
of 253 occurring in 2001.  While the Company believes that increased fast food restaurant consumption, reduced
egg cholesterol levels and industry advertising campaigns may result in a continuance of the recent increases in
current per capita egg consumption levels, no assurance can be given that per capita consumption will not decline
in the future. A discussion of current USDA flock size projections is included in Part II of this report under capital
resources and liquidity.

The Company sells the majority of its shell eggs in approximately 26 states across the southwest,
southeast, mid-west and mid-Atlantic regions of the United States.  Cal-Maine is a major factor in egg marketing
in a majority of these states.  Many states in Cal-Maine s market area are egg deficit regions; that is, production of
fresh shell eggs is less than total consumption.  Competition from other producers in specific market areas is
generally based on price, service, and quality of product.  Strong competition exists in each of the Company s
markets.

Spe ci al t y Eg g s. The  Comp an y a ls o pr o du ce s  s pe ci a lt y e gg s su c h as  Egg• land s Be st   an d Fa r mh ou s e eg gs .
Egg• land s Be st   e gg s ar e  p at e nt ed  e g gs  t h at  a re  be li e ve d by  it s d ev el op e rs , b as ed  o n  s ci e nt if ic  st ud i es , to  ca us e  n o
i nc re as e  i n s er um c h ol es t er ol  wh en  e a te n as  pa rt  of  a  l o w fa t  d ie t.  Cal - Ma in e p ro du c es  a nd  pr oc e ss es  Egg • l an d  s
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Bes t  e gg s, un de r l ic en s e fr om Eg g• l an d  s Bes t, In c. (  EB ) , a t it s  e xi s ti ng  f a ci li t ie s, u n de r Egg • l an d  s Bes t
g ui de li n es . The  g ui d el in e s in cl u de  p r op ri et a ry  f e ed  f or mul at i on s an d  e gg  ha nd li n g pr o ce du re s  t o i ns ur e p ro du c t
q ua li ty . The  pr od uc t  i s mar ke te d  t o t he  Comp an y  s  e st ab l is he d  b as e o f cu s to me rs  at  p r ic es  t h at  r e fl ec t a  p re miu m
o ve r or d in ar y  s he ll  eg gs . Egg • l an d  s Bes t  eg gs  a c co un t ed  f or  ap pr o xi ma te l y 6.1 % of  t h e Co mpa ny s  ne t s al es  i n 
f is ca l 2 00 3.  Fa rmho u se  br an d e gg s a re  p ro d uc ed  at  Comp an y f ac il it i es  b y  h en s t ha t a re  n ot  ca ge d , an d a re 
p ro vi de d  wit h  a  d ie t  o f n at ur al  gr ai n s an d d ri nk i ng  wat e r th a t is  f r ee  o f  h or mo n es  o r  o th er  ch emi ca l ad d it iv e s.
Far mh ou s e eg g s ac co u nt ed  fo r 2.5 % of  ne t sa l es  i n  f is ca l  2 00 3 . Th ey  ar e i nt en de d  t o mee t th e  d ema nd s of 
c on su me r s wh o  a re  s e ns it i ve  t o e nv ir o nmen ta l  a nd  an imal  we lf a re  i ss u es .

Liv es to c k.  The  Comp an y  s  l iv es t oc k o pe ra ti o ns  c o ns is t p ri ma r il y of  th e o pe ra ti o n of  a 1,44 0  h ea d  d ai ry 
f ac il it y , fr o m wh ic h  mil k  s al es  ar e mad e to  a ma j or  mil k  p ro c es so r.  Mil k  a nd  c a tt le  sa le s wer e a pp ro xi mat el y  1 % of 
t he  Comp an y  s  n et  s a le s i n fi sc a l 20 0 3.

Compe ti t io n.  The  p ro d uc ti o n, p ro c es si n g, a nd  di st r ib ut io n  o f s he ll  e g gs  i s  a n in t en se l y co mp e ti ti v e
b us in es s , wh i ch , tr a di ti o na ll y, ha s a tt ra ct e d la r ge  n umb er s o f pr od u ce rs .  Sh el l  e gg  co mp et i ti on  is  g en e ra ll y  b as ed  on 
p ri ce , s er vi c e, a nd  qu al i ty  o f p ro du c ti on .  Al th o ug h th e  Comp an y is  th e l ar ge st  co mb i ne d pr o du ce r , pr oc e ss or , a nd 
d is tr ib u to r o f sh el l  e gg s  i n th e  Uni t ed  Sta t es , i t do es  no t o cc up y a  c on t ro ll in g  mar k et  p os i ti on  in  a ny  ar ea  wh er e i ts 
e gg s ar e  s ol d .

The  s he l l eg g  p ro du c ti on  an d pr o ce ss i ng  i nd u st ry  ha s be e n ch a ra ct er i ze d b y a gr o wi ng  co nc en t ra ti o n of 
p ro du ct i on . I n 20 02 , 6 2 p ro du ce r s wi t h on e mil li o n or  mo re  l a ye rs  o wne d 7 9% o f t he  2 7 9 mi ll i on  t o ta l U.S. la y er s,
c ompa re d  wit h  t he  5 6  p ro d uc er s wit h o ne  mil l io n o r mo re  la ye r s owni n g 64 % o f th e  2 32  mi ll io n  t ot a l U.S. la ye r s in 
1 99 0, a n d 61  pr od uc e rs  wi th  o ne  mi ll i on  o r mor e l ay er s o wn in g  5 6% o f  t he  24 8.0 mil li o n to ta l  U.S. l ay er s  i n 1 98 5.
The  Comp an y b el ie ve s  t ha t  a  c on t in ua t io n of  th at  co nc en t ra ti o n tr en d  may  r es ul t i n th e  r ed uc e d c yc li ca l it y o f sh el l 
e gg  p ri c es , b ut  n o a ss ur a nc e ca n  b e g iv en  i n  t ha t  r eg ar d . 

Pat ents  and Tra de na mes .  The  Comp an y d oe s no t  o wn  an y pa t en ts  or  p ro p ri et a ry  t ec h no lo g ie s, b u t do e s
mar ke t p ro du c ts  u nd e r t ra de na mes  i n cl ud in g  Rio  Gra n de , Far mh ou s e, an d S un up s.  Ca l- Mai ne  pr od uc e s an d 
p ro ce ss e s Egg • l an d  s Bes t  e gg s, u n de r l ic en se  fr om EB, as  in di c at ed  a b ov e.

Gov er nme nt  Re gula ti o n.  The  Comp an y  s  f ac il i ti es  an d op e ra ti o ns  a re  su bj e ct  t o r eg ul a ti on  b y  v ar i ou s
f ed er al  an d s ta te  a g en ci e s, i nc l ud in g , bu t n ot  l i mi te d t o, t h e Fe de r al  Fo od  a nd  Dr ug  Ad mi ni s tr at i on  ( FDA  ), th e
Uni te d Sta te s  Dep ar t me nt  of  Agr i cu lt u re  ( USDA ) , t he  En vi ro n me nt al  Pr ot e ct io n Age nc y , th e Occ up a ti on al  Sa fe t y
a nd  Hea l th  Admin is t ra ti o n an d c or re s po nd in g  s ta t e ag en c ie s. The  a pp l ic ab l e re gu l at io n s re la t e to  gr ad in g , qu a li ty 
c on tr ol , l ab e li ng , s an it a ry  c on tr ol , a nd  wa st e d is po sa l .Th e Co mpa ny  s sh el l  e gg  fa ci li t ie s a re  s ub j ec t t o pe ri o di c
USDA in s pe ct i on s.  Cal -Ma in e ma i nt ai n s it s o wn  i n sp ec ti o n pr o gr am t o  a ss u re  c omp li an c e wi th  th e Compa ny  s own 
s ta nd ar d s an d  c us to mer  s p ec if ic a ti on s .

Man ag eme nt  b e li ev es  th at  th e Co mpa ny  is  i n s ub st a nt ia l c ompl i an ce  wi th  e x is ti ng  la ws  an d re g ul at i on s
r el at in g  t o t he  o pe r at io n  o f it s  f ac i li ti es  an d d oe s no t  k no w o f an y  maj o r ca pi t al  e x pe nd it u re s n ec es sa r y to  co mp ly 
wit h su c h st a tu te s a nd  r e gu la ti o ns . Eve nt s b ey on d  t he  c o nt ro l  o f th e  Comp an y, h o we ve r , su ch  as  a n  o ut br e ak  o f 
d is ea se  in  i t s fl oc k s or  th e ad o pt io n  b y go v er nme nt al  a g en ci e s of  mo re  s t ri ng en t  r eg u la ti on s , co u ld  mat e ri al l y an d
a dv er se l y af f ec t th e  Comp an y  s o pe ra t io ns .

Emp lo ye e s.  As of  Ma y 31 , 2 00 3, th e Compa ny  ha d a  t ot al  of  a p pr ox ima te ly  1,53 4 e mp lo y ee s of  wh om
1 ,3 55  wo rk ed  in  e gg  pr od u ct io n, pr oc e ss in g a nd  ma rk et in g , 92  we re  e n ga ge d  i n fe e d mi l l op er a ti on s , 40  i n  d ai r y
a ct iv it i es , a nd  4 7 wer e a dmin is t ra ti v e empl o ye es , i nc lu d in g o ff ic er s , at  th e Co mpa ny  s ex ec u ti ve  of fi ce s .  Ab ou t 9%
o f th e Compa n y  s pe r so nn e l ar e p ar t- t ime.  Non e o f th e Compa n y  s emp lo ye e s ar e c ov er e d by  a  co ll e ct iv e
b ar ga in i ng  a g re emen t .  Th e Co mp a ny  c o ns id er s  i ts  re la ti o ns  wi th  e mp l oy ee s  t o be  go od .
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PART II

ITEM 7. MANAGEMENTS S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL
CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

OVERVIEW

The Company is primarily engaged in the production, cleaning, grading, packing, and sale of fresh shell
eggs.  The Company s fiscal year end is the Saturday nearest to May 31 which was May 31, 2003 (52 weeks)
June˚1, 2002 (52 weeks) and June 2, 2001 (52 weeks) for the most recent three fiscal years.

The Company s operations are fully integrated.  At its facilities it hatches chicks, grows pullets,
manufactures feed, and produces, processes, and distributes shell eggs.  The Company currently is the largest
producer and distributor of fresh shell eggs in the United States.  Shell eggs accounted for 99% of the Company s
net sales in fiscal 2003 and 98% in fiscal 2002.  The Company primarily markets its shell eggs in the
southwestern, southeastern, mid-western and mid-Atlantic regions of the United States.  Shell eggs are sold
directly by the Company primarily to national and regional supermarket chains.

The Company currently uses contract producers for approximately 13% of its total egg production.
Contract producers operate under agreements with the Company for the use of their facilities in the production of
shell eggs by layers owned by the Company, which owns the eggs produced.  Also, shell eggs are purchased, as
needed, for resale by the Company from outside producers.

The Company s operating income or loss is significantly affected by wholesale shell egg market prices,
which can fluctuate widely and are outside of the Company s control.  Retail sales of shell eggs are greatest
during the fall and winter months and lowest during the summer months.  Prices for shell eggs fluctuate in
response to seasonal factors and a natural increase in egg production during the spring and early summer.

The Company s cost of production is materially affected by feed costs, which average about 55% of Cal-
Maine’s total farm egg production cost.  Changes in feed costs result in changes in the Company s cost of goods
sold.  The cost of feed ingredients is affected by a number of supply and demand factors such as crop production
and weather, and other factors, such as the level of grain exports, over which the Company has little or no control.

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The following table sets forth, for the years indicated, certain items from the Company s consolidated
statements of operations expressed as a percentage of net sales.

Percentage of Net Sales

Fiscal Years Ended May 31, 2003 June 1, 2002 June 2, 2001

Net sales 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%
Cost of sales   81.3   89.5 83.5
Gross profit 18.7 10.5 16.5
Selling, general & administrative expenses   11.9   12.9 11.8
Operating income (loss) 6.8 (2.4) 4.7
Other income (expense)   (1.9)   (2.6) (1.7)
Income (loss) before taxes 4.9 (5.0) 3.0
Income tax expense (benefit)    1.8 (1.8) 1.1
Net income (loss)    3.1%    (3.2)%    1.9%
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Fiscal Year Ended May 31, 2003 Compared to Fiscal Year Ended June 1, 2002

Net Sales.  Net sales for the fiscal year ended May 31, 2003 were $387.5 million, an increase of $61.3
million, or 18.8%, from net sales of $326.2 million for fiscal 2002.  Total dozens of eggs sold increased in fiscal
2003 and egg selling prices increased as compared with prices in fiscal 2002. In fiscal 2003, total dozens of shell
eggs sold were 570.7 million, an increase of 8.9 million dozen, or 1.6%, compared to 561.8 million dozen sold in
fiscal 2002. Consumer demand was good and egg supply was balanced, which resulted in higher egg selling
prices during fiscal 2003.  The Company s average selling price of shell eggs increased from $.549 per dozen for
fiscal 2002 to $.645 per dozen for fiscal 2003, an increase of $.096 per dozen, or 17.5%.

Cost of Sales.  Cost of sales for the fiscal year ended May 31, 2003 was $315.2 million, an increase of
$23.4 million, or 8.0%, as compared to cost of sales of $291.8 million for last fiscal year. While dozens sold
increased, cost of purchases from outside egg producers and cost of feed ingredients increased, offset by the
Company s $9.5 million recovery share of a class action feed ingredient lawsuit. The 1.6 % increase in dozens
sold was from increases in dozens produced in Company facilities and in the number of dozens purchased from
outside egg producers.  The increase in the cost of the eggs purchased from outside producers was due to higher
egg market selling prices.  Feed cost for fiscal 2003 was $.213 per dozen, compared to $.193 per dozen for last
fiscal year, an increase of 10.4%. A 17.5% increase in egg selling prices, offset by higher feed ingredient costs
and higher cost of purchases from outside egg producers, resulted in an increase in gross profit from 10.5% of net
sales for fiscal 2002 to 18.7% of net sales for fiscal 2003.

Selling, General and Administrative Expenses.  Selling, general and administrative expense was $46.0
million in fiscal 2003, an increase of $3.7 million, or 8.7%, as compared to an expense of $42.3 million for fiscal
2002. The increase is due to increases in insurance expense, bad debt reserves and value of the Company s stock
option plan. Due to overall increases in the insurance market during fiscal 2003, the cost of general business and
property insurance increased $1.0 million. In the fourth quarter of fiscal 2003, a customer, Fleming Inc., filed for
bankruptcy and the Company adjusted its bad debt allowance for $1.1 million. Due to the increase in the market
quote of the Company s stock, from $3.78 per share at June 2, 2002 to $5.24 per share at May 31,2003, the
increased value of $1.1 million of the Company s stock option plan liability was recorded. Other selling, general
and administrative expenses, including delivery, have increased approximately $500,000. As a percent of net
sales, selling, general and administrative expense decreased from 12.9% for fiscal 2002 to 11.9% for fiscal 2003
due to higher average egg selling prices in fiscal 2003.

Operating Income (Loss).  As a result of the above, the Company s operating income was $26.2 million
for fiscal 2003, as compared to an operating loss of $7.9 million for fiscal 2002.  As a percent of net sales, the
operating income for fiscal 2003 was 6.8%, as compared to an operating loss of 2.4% for fiscal 2002.

Other Income (Expense).  Other expense for fiscal 2003 was $7.1 million, a decrease of $1.3 million, as
compared to other expense of $8.4 million for fiscal 2002. For fiscal 2003, equity in income of affiliates
amounted to $442,000 of income as compared to a loss of $480,000 in fiscal 2002. Interest expense decreased
$407,000, or 4.8% in fiscal 2003. As a percent of net sales, other expense was 1.9 % in fiscal 2003 and 2.6% in
fiscal 2002.

Income Taxes.  As a result of the above, the Company s pre-tax income was $19.1 million for the fiscal
2003 year, compared to pre-tax loss of  $16.4 million for fiscal 2002. The Company had an income tax expense of
$6.9 million in fiscal 2003 with an effective tax rate of 36.2%, as compared to income tax benefit of $5.8 million
with an effective rate of 35.4% for fiscal 2002.

Net Income (Loss).  As a result of the above, net income for fiscal 2003 was $12.2 million or $1.03 per
diluted share, compared to net loss of $10.6 million, or $0.90 per basic and diluted share for fiscal 2002



10

Fiscal Year Ended June 1, 2002 Compared to Fiscal Year Ended June 2, 2001

Net Sales.  Net sales for the fiscal year ended June 1, 2002 were $326.2 million, a decrease of $32.2
million, or 9.0%, from net sales of $358.4 million for fiscal 2001.  Total dozens of eggs sold increased in fiscal
2002 and egg selling prices decreased as compared with prices in fiscal 2001. In fiscal 2002, total dozens of shell
eggs sold were 561.8 million, an increase of 16.7 million dozen, or 3.1%, compared to 545.1 million dozen sold in
fiscal 2001. Although consumer demand was good, increased egg supply resulted in lower egg selling prices
during fiscal 2002.  The Company s average selling price of shell eggs decreased from $.625 per dozen for fiscal
2001 to $.549 per dozen for fiscal 2002, a decrease of $.076 per dozen, or 12.2%.

Cost of Sales.  Cost of sales for the fiscal year ended June 1, 2002 was $291.8 million, a decrease of $7.6
million, or 2.5%, as compared to cost of sales of $299.4 million for  fiscal 2001. Although dozens sold increased,
cost of purchases from outside egg producers and cost of feed ingredients decreased.  The 3.1% increase in dozens
sold was from increases in dozens produced in Company facilities and in the number of dozens purchased from
outside egg producers.  The decrease in the cost of the eggs purchased from outside producers was due to lower
egg market selling prices.  Feed cost for fiscal 2002 was $.193 per dozen, compared to $.197 per dozen for fiscal
2001, a decrease of 2.0%. A 12.2% decrease in egg selling prices, offset by lower feed ingredient costs and lower
cost of purchases from outside egg producers, resulted in a decrease in gross profit from 16.5% of net sales for
fiscal 2001 to 10.5% of net sales for fiscal 2002.

Selling, General and Administrative Expenses.  Selling, general and administrative expense was $42.3
million in fiscal 2002 and 2001. On a cost per dozen sold basis, selling, general and administrative remained
approximately the same, $.075 per dozen for fiscal 2002, as compared to $.078 per dozen for fiscal 2001.  As a
percent of net sales, selling, general and administrative expense increased from 11.8% for fiscal 2001 to 12.9%
for fiscal 2002 due to lower average egg selling prices in fiscal 2002.

Operating Income (Loss).  As a result of the above, the Company s operating loss was $7.9 million for
fiscal 2002, as compared to operating income of $16.7 million for fiscal 2001.  As a percent of net sales, the
operating loss for fiscal 2002 was 2.4%, as compared to operating income of 4.7% for fiscal 2001.

Other Income (Expense).  Other expense for fiscal 2002 was $8.4 million, an increase of $2.5 million as
compared to other expense of $5.9 million for fiscal 2001. Income from the settlement of an insurance claim in
fiscal 2001 accounted for $1.4 million of the change in other expense in fiscal 2002 as compared to fiscal 2001.
For fiscal 2002, equity in income of affiliates was a loss of $480,000 as compared to income of $415,000 in fiscal
2001. Interest expense decreased $232,000, or 2.7% in fiscal 2002. As a percent of net sales, other expense was
2.6 % in fiscal 2002 and 1.7% in fiscal 2001.

Income Taxes.  As a result of the above, the Company s pre-tax loss was $16.4 million for the fiscal 2002
year, compared to pre-tax income of  $10.7 million for fiscal 2001. The Company had an income tax benefit of
$5.8 million in fiscal 2002 with an effective tax rate of 35.4%, as compared to income tax expense of $3.9 million
with an effective rate of 36.3% for fiscal 2001.

Net Income (Loss).  As a result of the above, net loss for fiscal 2002 was $10.6 million or $0.90 per basic
and diluted share, compared to net income of $6.8 million, or $0.57 per basic share and $0.56 per diluted share for
fiscal 2001
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Capital Resources and Liquidity.  The Company s working capital at May 31, 2003 was $27.7 million
compared to $17.3 million at June 1, 2002.  The Company s current ratio was 1.48 at May 31, 2003 as compared
with 1.30 at June 1, 2002.  The Company s need for working capital generally is highest in the last and first fiscal
quarters ending in May and August, respectively, when egg prices are normally at seasonal lows.  Seasonal
borrowing needs frequently are higher during these quarters than during other fiscal quarters.  The Company has a
$35.0 million line of credit with three banks, none of which was utilized at May 31, 2003.  The Company s long-
term debt at May 31, 2003, including current maturities, amounted to $108.2 million, as compared to $118.4
million at June 1, 2002.

For the fiscal year ended May 31, 2003, $30.7 million was provided by operating activities.  The
Company received $529,000 net proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment and $205,000 in net
cash activities covering notes receivable and investments.  In fiscal 2003, $7.5 million was used for construction
projects and $5.0 million for purchases of property, plant and equipment.  Approximately $587,000 was used for
dividend payments on the common stock.  Principal payments of $10.1 million were made on long-term debt and
$7.0 million was repaid on borrowings on the line of credit. The net result of these activities was an increase in
cash and cash equivalents of $1.2 million for fiscal 2003.

As discussed in Item1 Business, the Company is exploring the possibility of becoming privately owned.
Proposed funding for the transaction would be provided by a $6.9 million income tax refund receivable, an
additional $5.0 million long-term borrowing from an insurance company, and short-term borrowings under the
Company s bank line of credit.

According to U.S. Department of Agriculture ( USDA ) reports, the chick hatch for the first six months
of calendar 2003 was lower than in the same six-month period in 2002. The chick hatch data indicates the
potential number of hens to be placed in the layer flocks in the upcoming 6-month period.  The projected hen
numbers, using chick hatch data and USDA fowl slaughter reports, for the balance 2003 and the first half of 2004
should be no greater than the year earlier. This could result in a better egg supply-demand balance in the year
ahead. Current projections for the fall 2003 corn and soybean crop are good and could result in reasonable feed
ingredient cost for the year ahead.

Substantially all trade receivables and inventories collateralize the Company s line of credit, and property,
plant and equipment collateralize the Company s long-term debt under its loan agreements. The Company is
required by certain provisions of these loan agreements to (1) maintain minimum levels of working capital (ratio
of not less than 1.25 to 1) and net worth (minimum of $55.0 million tangible net worth); (2) limit dividends
(allowed if no default), capital expenditures (not to exceed depreciation for the same four fiscal quarters), lease
obligations and additional long-term borrowings (total funded debt to total capitalization not to exceed 70%); and
(3) maintain various current and cash-flow coverage ratios (1.25 to1), among other restrictions. At May 31, 2003,
the Company is in compliance with the provisions of all loan agreements, including any provisions waived or
amended. Under certain of the loan agreements, the lenders have the option to require the prepayment of any
outstanding borrowings in the event of a change in the control of the Company.

In fiscal 2001, the Company began construction of a new shell egg production and processing facility in
Guthrie, Kentucky, with completion of the facility originally expected in fiscal 2003. Due to weather related
construction delays, completion is now expected during the first or second quarter of fiscal 2004. The total cost of
the facility is approximately $18.0 million, of which $14.6 million was incurred through May 31, 2003.  The
Company has commitments from an insurance company to receive $5.0 million in long-term borrowings and
from a leasing company to receive $7.5 million applicable to the Guthrie facility.  In addition to the construction,
the Company has projected capital expenditures of $11.0 million in fiscal 2004, which will be funded by cash
flows from operations and additional long-term borrowings.

The Company has $2.5 million of deferred tax liability due to a subsidiary s change from a cash basis to
an accrual basis taxpayer on May 29, 1988.  The Taxpayer Relief Act of 1997 provides that the taxes on the cash
basis temporary differences as of that date are generally payable over the 20 years beginning in fiscal 1999 or in
the first fiscal year in which there is a change in ownership control. Payment of the $2.5 million deferred tax
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liability would reduce the Company s cash, but would not impact the Company s consolidated statement of
operations or stockholders  equity, as these taxes have been accrued and are reflected on the Company s
consolidated balance sheet.  See Note 10 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

Critical Accounting Policies.  The preparation of financial statements in accordance with accounting
standards generally accepted in the United States requires management to make estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts
of revenues and expenses during the reporting period.  Actual results could differ from these estimates.

Management suggests that the Company s Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, as described in Note 1 of
the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements, be read in conjunction with this Management s Discussion and
Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations.  The Company believes the critical accounting
policies that most impact the Company s consolidated financial statements are described below.

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts.  In the normal course of business, the Company extends credit to its customers
on a short-term basis.  Although credit risks associated with our customers are considered minimal, the Company
routinely reviews its accounts receivable balances and makes provisions for probable doubtful accounts. In
circumstances where management is aware of a specific customer s inability to meet its financial obligations to
the Company (e.g. bankruptcy filings), a specific reserve is recorded to reduce the receivable to the amount
expected to be collected.  For all other customers, the Company recognizes reserves for bad debts based on the
length of time the receivables are past due, generally 100% for amounts more than 60 days past due.

Inventories.  Inventories of eggs, feed, supplies and livestock are valued principally at the lower of cost (first-in,
first-out method) or market.  If market prices for eggs and feed grains move substantially lower, the Company
would record adjustments to write-down the carrying values of eggs and feed inventories to fair market value.

The cost associated with flock inventories, consisting principally of chick purchases, feed, labor,
contractor payments and overhead costs, are accumulated during the growing period of approximately 18 weeks.
Capitalized flock costs are then amortized over the productive lives of the flocks, generally one to two years.
Flock mortality is charged to cost of sales as incurred.  High mortality from disease or extreme temperatures
would result in abnormal adjustments to write-down flock inventories.  Management continually monitors each
flock and attempts to take appropriate actions to minimize the risk of mortality loss.

Long-Lived Assets.  Depreciable long-lived assets are primarily comprised of buildings and improvements and
machinery and equipment.  Depreciation is provided by the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives,
which are 15 to 25 years for buildings and improvements and 3 to 12 years for machinery and equipment.  An
increase or decrease in the estimated useful lives would result in changes to depreciation expense.

The Company continually reevaluates the carrying value of its long-lived assets, for events or changes in
circumstances, which indicate that the carrying value may not be recoverable.  As part of this reevaluation, the
Company estimates the future cash flows expected to result from the use of the asset and its eventual disposal.  If
the sum of the expected future cash flows (undiscounted and without interest charges) is less than the carrying
amount of the asset, an impairment loss is recognized to reduce the carrying value of the long-lived asset to the
estimated fair value of the asset.

Investment in Affiliates.   The Company has invested in other companies engaged in the production, processing
and distribution of shell eggs and egg products.  The Company s ownership percentages in these companies range
from less than 20% to 50%.  Therefore, these investments are recorded using the cost or the equity method, and
accordingly, not consolidated in the Company s financial statements.  Changes in the ownership percentages of
these investments might alter the accounting methods currently used. The combined total assets and total
liabilities of these companies were approximately $51 million and $30 million, respectively, at May 31, 2003.
The Company is a guarantor of approximately $7.2 million of long-term debt of one of the affiliates. See note 2,
Investment in Affiliates, to Company s consolidated financial statements for further information as to the
Company s ownership interests in its affiliates.

Goodwill.  At May 31, 2003, the Company s goodwill balance represented 1.3% of total assets and 4.8% of
stockholders  equity.  Goodwill primarily relates to the fiscal 1999 acquisition of Hudson Brothers, Inc.  The
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Company elected to adopt, as of June 3, 2001, Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 142, Goodwill
and Other Intangible Assets  (SFAS 142).  Under SFAS 142, goodwill and indefinite lived intangible assets are
no longer amortized but are reviewed annually, or more frequently if impairment indicators arise, for impairment.
An impairment loss would be recorded if the recorded goodwill exceeds its implied fair value.

The Company has only one operating segment, which is its sole reporting unit.  Accordingly, goodwill is
tested for impairment at the entity level.  Significant adverse industry or economic changes, or other factors not
anticipated could result in an impairment charge to reduce recorded goodwill.

Income Taxes.  The Company determines its effective tax rate by estimating its permanent differences resulting
from differing treatment of items for tax and accounting purposes.  The Company is periodically audited by
taxing authorities.  Any audit adjustments affecting permanent differences could have an impact on the
Company s effective tax rate.

Impact of Recently Issued Accounting Standards.  The Company adopted the provisions of Financial
Accounting Standards No. 133, Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities  (SFAS No. 133)
in the first quarter of fiscal 2002.  Because the Company is not a party to derivative financial instruments, the
adoption of SFAS No. 133 had no effect on the consolidated financial statements of the Company upon adoption.

Effective June 3, 2001, the Company adopted Financial Accounting Standards No. 141, Business
Combinations  (SFAS No. 141). SFAS No. 141 eliminates the pooling-of-interests method of accounting for
business combinations except for qualifying business combinations that were initiated prior to July 1, 2001.
SFAS No. 141 also includes new criteria to recognize intangible assets separately from goodwill.  The
requirements of SFAS 141 are effective for any business combination accounted for by the purchase method that
is completed after June 30, 2001.

The Company also adopted Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No.142, Goodwill and Other
Intangible Assets (SFAS No 142), effective June 3, 2001.  Under SFAS No. 142, goodwill is no longer amortized
but reviewed for impairment annually, or more frequently if certain indicators arise.  The Company completed its
transitional impairment test in the quarter ended December 1, 2001 and no impairment loss resulted.

In the first quarter of fiscal 2003, the Company adopted Statement of Financial Accounting Standards
No.˚144, Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets  (SFAS No. 144).  SFAS No. 144
supersedes Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 121, Accounting for the Impairment of Long-Lived
Assets and for Long-Lived Assets to Be Disposed of,  (SFAS No. 121), however, it retains the fundamental
provisions of SFAS No. 121 related to the recognition and measurement of the impairment of long-lived assets to
be held and used.   In addition, SFAS No. 144 provides more guidance on estimating cash flows when
performing a recoverability test, requires that a long-lived asset to be disposed other than by sale (e.g.,
abandoned) be classified as held and used  until it is disposed of, and establishes more restrictive criteria to
classify an asset as held for sale.  The adoption of SFAS No. 144 had no effect on the Company s consolidated
results of operations or financial position.

In January 2003, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued Interpretation No. 46, "Consolidation
of Variable Interest Entities, an interpretation of Accounting Research Bulletin No. 51" (the Interpretation). The
Interpretation requires the consolidation of entities in which an enterprise absorbs a majority of the entity s
expected losses, receives a majority of the entity s expected residual returns, or both, as a result of ownership,
contractual or other financial interests in the entity. Currently, entities are generally consolidated by an enterprise
when it has a controlling financial interest through ownership of a majority voting interest in the entity. The
Company has investments in various affiliates (see Note 2) established for the purpose of production, processing,
and distribution of shell eggs. These entities are primarily funded with financing from third party lenders, which is
secured by first liens on the assets of the entities. The creditors of the entities do not have recourse to the
Company, except for one entity for which the Company guarantees 50% of its debt.  The Company accounts for
these investments on the equity method of accounting, recording its share of the net income or loss. The Company
has the ability to exercise significant influence over operating and financial policies. However, the Company does
not have a controlling interest in the respective entities.  At May 31, 2003, the Company s aggregate net
investment in these entities totaled $6 million. The portion of the debt guaranteed was $7.2 million at May 31,
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2003. These amounts represent the Company s maximum exposure to loss at May 31, 2003 as a result of its
involvement with these entities.  The Company is currently evaluating the effects of the issuance of the
Interpretation on the accounting for its ownership interests in these entities.

Forward Looking Statements.  The foregoing statements contain forward-looking statements, which
involve risks and uncertainties and the Company s actual experience may differ materially from that discussed
above.  Factors that may cause such a difference include, but are not limited to, those discussed in Factors
Affecting Future Performance  below, as well as future events that have the effect of reducing the Company s
available cash balances, such as unanticipated operating losses or capital expenditures related to possible future
acquisitions.  Readers are cautioned not to place undue reliance on forward-looking statements, which reflect
management s analysis only as the date hereof.  The Company assumes no obligation to update forward-looking
statements.  See also the Company s reports to be filed from time to time with the Securities and Exchange
Commission pursuant to the Securities Exchange Act of 1934.

Factors Affecting Future Performance.  The Company s future operating results may be affected by
various trends and factors which are beyond the Company s control.  These include adverse changes in shell egg
prices and in the grain markets.  Accordingly, past trends should not be used to anticipate future results and
trends.  Further, the Company s prior performance should not be presumed to be an accurate indication of future
performance.

Because definitive proxy soliciting material relating to the 2003 Annual Meeting of Shareholders of Cal-
Maine Foods Inc.(the Company ) was not filed within 120 days, the information called for by items 10, 11,12
and 13 of  Part III of the Company s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended May 31, 2003 is included in
this Amendment No. 1 to such Form 10-K.
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PART III

Item 10. Directors and Executive Officers of the Registrant.

N am e A ge T en ure a nd  B u siness Ex perience

F red R. Ad am s, Jr. (1) (3 ) Ch airman o f
the B oard of Directo rs, C hief E x ecutive
O fficer an d D irecto r

7 1 F red R. Ad am s, Jr. h as serv ed  as the Ch ief E xecu tiv e Officer an d directo r o f th e
C om pany  since its fo rm ation  in 1 96 9 and  as the C h airm an  of its Bo ard  o f D irecto rs sin ce
1 98 2.  He is a directo r and  p ast chairm an  o f N ation al E g g Co m pany , U nited  E gg
P ro du cers, M ississip pi P o ultry A ssociatio n, U.S. Eg g Marketers, Inc., an d  E gg
C learin g ho use, In c.  M r. Ad am s is th e father-in-law  o f M r. B aker.

R ichard  K. L oo per (1)
V ice Ch airman  o f th e B oard of D irecto rs
and  D irector

7 6 R ichard  K. L oo per served  as Presiden t an d C hief Op erating  O fficer o f th e C om pan y fro m
1 98 3 to  Janu ary  1 99 7 .  Prev io usly, h e h ad  serv ed  as E xecutiv e V ice P resid en t of th e
C om pany  since 1 98 2 and  w as orig inally  emp lo y ed  b y  the C o mp an y  in 19 7 4.  Mr. L oo per
is a past ch airman o f th e A merican  E g g Bo ard  and  U.S. E g g Marketers, Inc. and  p resen tly
serves as Ch airman o f E gg land s B est, In c. He h as serv ed as a directo r o f th e C om pan y
sin ce 1 9 82 .

A do lp hu s B . B ak er (1 )
P residen t, C h ief Op eratin g Officer an d
D irecto r

4 6 A do lp hu s B . B ak er w as elected  P resid ent and  Ch ief O peratin g O fficer in  Janu ary 1 99 7.
H e was servin g as V ice P resid en t and  Directo r of Mark eting  o f the C o mp an y  w hen
elected  President.  Prev iou sly, he h ad serv ed as Assistant to  the P resid ent sin ce 19 8 7 an d
h as b een  emp loy ed  b y  the Co mp an y  sin ce 19 86 .  He has been a d irecto r o f the C om p an y
sin ce 1 9 91 .  Mr. Bak er is a m em b er o f the A m erican Eg g B oard  Ex ecutive C o mm ittee,
P ast Ch airman  o f Mississipp i Po u ltry  Asso ciation , and  is a p ast chairm an  of E gg
C learin g ho use, In c.  Mr. Baker is a d irecto r o f T ru stmark Natio nal B an k o f Jack son ,
M ississipp i.  M r. B aker is Mr. A dams’  son -in -law .

B ob by  J. R ain es (1)
V ice Presiden t, C hief Fin an cial Officer,
T reasurer, S ecretary  and  Directo r

7 0 B ob by  J. R ain es h as serv ed as V ice P resid en t, Ch ief F in ancial O fficer, T reasu rer and
S ecretary of th e Co m pany  since 1 97 2.  Previo usly , h e had  h an d led vario us op eration al
respo nsibilities an d  h as been  em ploy ed by  th e Co m pany  since its form atio n  in 19 6 9.  He
h as serv ed  as a d irector of the Co mp any  sin ce 19 8 2.

Jack B. Self, V ice P resid en t/Op eratio ns
and  P ro d uctio n an d D irector

7 3 Jack B. Self has been Vice President/Op eration s and  P ro d uctio n of th e Co m pany  since
1 97 7.  H e has served  as a d irector o f the C o mp an y  sin ce 19 83 .

Joe M . W yatt
V ice Presiden t/Feed  Mill Divisio n an d 
D irecto r

6 4 Joe M . W yatt has been Vice President/Feed  M ill D ivision  since 1 97 7 and  h as been
emp lo yed  b y the C om p an y sin ce its fo rmation  in  1 9 69 .  He h as serv ed  as a directo r of th e
C om pany  since 1 98 3.

C harles F. C o llin s
V ice Presiden t, C on tro ller an d D irector

5 9 C harles F. C o llin s h as serv ed  as V ice P resid en t and  C on tro ller of th e Co m pany  since
1 97 8.  He has served  as a d irector o f the C o mp an y  sin ce 19 83 .  H e has b een emp lo yed  b y
the C om p an y sin ce 1 9 69 .

W . D. (Jack) Co x (2 ) (3)
D irecto r

7 7 W .  D. (Jack ) C ox  h as served as a directo r o f th e C om pan y sin ce S ep tem ber 1 99 6.  Mr.
C ox  h as been  a co nsu ltan t to vario us fo od  co mp an ies and  a major farm  imp lem en t
C om pany  since O ctob er 19 9 0.  Prior th ereto, he serv ed  as V ice P resid en t for v eg etable o il
p ro cu rem en t at Kraft, In c. ( Kraft ), and  w as a con su ltant to  o ffsh o re an d Canad ian
locatio n s of Kraft’ s facilities.  In  th e early  1 9 80 s, M r. Co x  w as V ice P resid en t for
com mo dities and  ing red ien ts o f N ab isco Bran d s, In c.  Fro m 19 7 0 to  1 9 72  M r. Co x w as
emp lo yed  b y the C om p an y as Vice President fo r eg g  p ro du cts.

R . F aser T rip lett, M .D . (2)(3) 6 9 R . F aser T rip lett, M .D ., has served  as a d irector o f the C o mp an y  sin ce Septemb er 1 9 96 .
D r. T rip lett is a  retired  p h ysician  and  a Clin ical A ssistan t Pro fessor at th e Un iv ersity  o f
M ississipp i S ch oo l o f Med icin e.  H e is th e m ajority  o wn er of A vanti T ravel, In c.

L etitia C. H u gh es(2) 5 1 L etitia C. H u gh es w as elected  as a d irector of th e Co mp any  in  July o f 20 0 1.  Sin ce 1 9 74
M s. H ug h es h as been  asso ciated w ith T ru stmark Natio nal B an k, Jack so n , Mississip p i, in
m an ag erial p o sition s.  Sh e is p resen tly  serv in g as Senio r Vice-President, M an ag er, P rivate
B an king .

_ __ __ __ _ __ __ _ __ _
(1) M em ber o f th e E xecu tiv e C om mittee
(2) M em ber o f th e A ud it Co mm ittee
(3) M em ber o f th e C om pen satio n Co mm ittee
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The Company’s executive officers serve as executive officers at the pleasure of the Board.  None of the officers or directors have been
convicted in a criminal proceeding during the past five years (excluding traffic violations or similar misdemeanor).  None of the
executive officers or directors have been a party to any judicial or administrative proceeding during the past five years that resulted in
a judgment, decree or final order enjoining the person from future violations of, or prohibiting activities subject to federal or state
securities laws, or a finding of any violation of federal or state securities laws.

Board and Committee Meetings
The Board of Directors of the Company held four meetings in the fiscal year ended May 31, 2003.  The Executive Committee of the
Board consists of Messrs. Adams, Looper, Baker and Raines.  The Board also has a Compensation Committee consisting of Messrs.
Adams, Cox and Triplett, and an Audit Committee consisting of Messrs. Cox and Triplett and Ms. Hughes.  The Board does not have
a nominating committee or committee performing similar functions.  This function is performed by the Executive Committee.

The Executive Committee may exercise all of the powers of the full Board of Directors, except for certain major actions, such as the
adoption of any agreement of merger or consolidation, the recommendation to stockholders of any disposition of substantially all of
the Company’s assets or a dissolution of the Company, and the declaration of a dividend or authorization of an issuance of stock.  The
Executive Committee acts on matters, within the scope of its authority, between meetings of the full Board.  During the last fiscal
year, no formal meetings of the Executive Committee were held, but the Committee, pursuant to Delaware law, took action by
unanimous written consent on five occasions.

The Compensation Committee reviews and recommends to the Board of Directors the compensation and benefits of all officers of the
Company, reviews general policy matters relating to compensation and benefits of employees of the Company, including the issuance
of stock options to the Company’s officers, employees and directors.  The Compensation Committee met one time during fiscal 2003.

The Audit Committee, which is composed of three independent directors, meets with management and the Company’s independent
auditors to determine the adequacy of internal controls, to recommend auditors for the Company and other financial reporting matters.
The Audit Committee met two times during fiscal 2003.

Each member of our Board of Directors attended 75% or more of the total meetings of the Board and all committees of the Board on
which he or she served during fiscal 2003.

Report of the Audit Committee
The Audit Committee oversees our financial reporting process on behalf of the Board of Directors.  A copy of the Charter of the
Audit Committee was attached as Appendix A to our Proxy Statement for fiscal year 2001.  Management has the primary
responsibility for the financial statements and the reporting process including the systems of internal controls.  In fulfilling its
oversight responsibilities, the Committee reviewed and discussed the audited financial statements in the Annual Report with
management including a discussion of the quality, not just the acceptability, of the accounting principles, the reasonableness of
significant judgments, and the clarity of disclosures in the financial statements.

The Committee reviewed with Ernst & Young, LLP, independent auditors, who are responsible for expressing an opinion on the
conformity of those audited financial statements with generally accepted accounting principles, their judgments as to the quality, not
just the acceptability, of our accounting principles and such other matters as are required to be discussed with the Committee under
generally accepted auditing standards.  In addition, the Committee has discussed with the independent auditors the auditors’
independence from management and the Company including the matters in the written disclosures required by the Independence
Standards Board and considered the compatibility of nonaudit services with the auditors’ independence.

The Committee discussed with our internal and independent auditors the overall scope and plans for their respective audits. The
Committee meets with the internal and independent auditors, with and without management present, to discuss the results of their
examinations, their evaluations of our internal controls, and the overall quality of our financial reporting.  The Committee held two
meetings during fiscal year 2003.

In reliance on the reviews and discussions referred to above, the Committee recommended to the Board of Directors (and the Board
has approved) that the audited financial statements be included in the Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended May 31, 2003,
for filing with the Securities and Exchange Commission.

W. D. (Jack) Cox, Audit Committee Member
Letitia C. Hughes, Audit Committee - Chairperson
R. Faser Triplett, M.D.  , Audit Committee Member
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S ection  16 (a )  Ben ef icial Ow ners h ip  R epo rt in g  C omp lian ce

S ection  16 (a)  o f th e S ecu rities  Ex ch ang e Act o f 1 93 4 req uires  o ur  d irecto rs  and  ex ecu tive o f ficer s, and  pers o ns  w ho  ow n m or e
than 10 % o f a r eg is ter ed  clas s o f ou r  equ ity  s ecu rities , s uch  as th e com m on  s to ck, to  f ile w ith the S ecu rities an d Exchan ge
Com miss ion  in itial r ep or ts of  o w ners h ip  and  repo r ts  o f chang es in  o w ners h ip  o f com mo n  s to ck  an d o th er  eq uity  secu rities o f th e
Com pany .  Su ch pers o ns  ar e also  requ ired to  fu rn ish  u s w ith cop ies o f all f or ms  th ey  file u n der this reg ulation .  To  o ur 
k no wled g e, b ased so lely o n a rev iew o f th e cop ies  o f su ch rep or ts  f u rn is h ed  to u s an d  r ep res en tatio ns  th at n o  o th er  repo r ts  w er e
r eq uired , fo r  the f iscal year  en ded May  3 1, 20 03 , all S ectio n  1 6( a)  repo r ts  app licab le to  its dir ecto rs  an d execu tiv e of f icer s w er e
tim ely f iled .

Item 11. Executive Compensation.

The f ollow in g  S um mar y Co m pens ation  Table sets fo r th  all co mp ens atio n  awar ded to , ear n ed  b y o r paid fo r s er vices  r en d er ed  to 
the Com p an y in all cap acities  d u ring  th e fis cal y ear en d ed  May 31 , 2 00 3, by  ( i) ou r chief  ex ecutive o f ficer and  ( ii)  o ur  fo ur  other
m os t hig hly com pens ated execu tiv e of f icer s w ho  w ere s er v in g as ex ecu tive of ficer s at th e en d  o f that year.

S UM MA RY  CO MPENS ATIO N  TABLE

A nn ua l C om pen sa tion 
L on g-term

C om pensa tion 
N am e an d 

P rincip a l Po sitio n Y ea r S alary B on us(1)
L TIP

P ay ou ts
A ll O th er

C om pensa tion  (2)

F red R.  Ad ams, Jr .,  Ch ai r man of  th e
Board  an d Ch i ef  E xecut iv e Off icer

2 00 3
2 00 2

$ 25 5, 34 0 
$ 25 7, 70 0 

$ 27 0, 00 0 
$ 27 0, 00 0 

Non e
Non e

$ 14 9, 38 4 
$   83 ,7 9 7

2 00 1 $ 25 7, 73 8 $ 25 0, 00 0 Non e $   83 ,7 9 7

Richard  K.  L oo per - Vice Chair man  o f 
T he Boar d of  Di rect o rs

2 00 3
2 00 2

$ 14 9, 17 5 
$  8 4, 39 6 

$ 12 5, 00 0 
$ 11 3, 56 3 

Non e
  $ 25 ,0 0 0(3)

$     1, 2 46 
$     1, 2 46 

2 00 1 $ 12 5, 85 8 $ 11 0, 00 0 $ 50 ,0 00 $     1, 2 15 

Ado lp hu s B. Bak er  -  Pr esi dent , Chi ef 
Operati n g Of f icer  an d Di r ecto r

2 00 3
2 00 2

$ 16 4, 73 6 
$ 15 9, 94 2 

$ 15 0, 00 0 
$ 14 0, 00 0 

Non e
Non e

$     7, 2 14 
$        71 0

2 00 1 $ 14 8, 64 2 $ 14 0, 00 0 Non e $        71 0

Bob by  J.  Rai n es -  Vi ce P r esid en t , Ch i ef 
F in an ci al Of f icer , Treasu rer an d  S ecr et ar y and 
Dir ecto r 

2 00 3
2 00 2
2 00 1

$ 16 0, 97 5 
$ 15 8, 29 6 
$ 16 0, 72 8 

$ 15 0, 00 0 
$ 14 2, 50 0 
$ 14 0, 00 0 ( 4) 

$        97 7
$        97 7
$        97 7

Jack Sel f — Vice Pr esi den t/ Op er ati on s
and  P ro d ucti o n an d Dir ect or 

2 00 3
2 00 2

$ 10 0, 97 1 
$  7 8, 76 2 

$  7 2, 53 4 
$  7 1, 56 6 ( 4) 

$     1, 1 02 
$     1, 1 02 

2 00 1 $  7 4, 93 5 $  7 1, 56 6 $     1, 1 02 
_ __ __ __ _ __ __ _ __ __ __ _ __ __ 
(1) B on uses are d etermin ed  an nu ally  by  th e Co mp ensation  C om m ittee o f  the Bo ard  o f Directo rs on  a discretio nary basis b ased on  th e results

o f ou r o peratio ns an d th e C om mittee’ s evalu ation  of the ex ecu tive o fficer’s con tribu tio n to  su ch  perform an ce, excep t that M r. S elf’s bo nu s
is determined  p ursu ant to  a form ula.

(2) T he amo u nts sho wn  represent p rem iu m s paid  un der sep arate life insu rance p olicies p u rchased  b y u s fo r each p erso n n am ed  in  the table.
T he p olicy  o n  M r. A d am s’  life is o wn ed by  an  A dam s family in ter v iv os trust, an d th e b en eficiaries are Mr. A dams’  fou r d au gh ters an d
their d escen d an ts.  Messrs. B ak er, S elf, L oo per and  R ain es are th e o wn ers o f their resp ectiv e po licies, an d m em bers of th eir fam ilies are
the b en eficiaries.  Th e C om pany  is n o t a ben eficiary un d er an y of su ch  p o licies an d w ill no t receiv e an y  p ortio n of th e p ro ceed s p aid
thereun d er u p on  the death  o f an y  o f the insured s.  In  add ition , w e made co ntrib utio n s to  th e accou nt of each  n am ed ex ecu tive main tained
u nd er an  E SO P  P lan.  S ee E mp lo y ee S tock Ow n ersh ip Plan  b elo w.

(3) P aid pu rsu an t to Mr. L oo per’ s incentiv e com pen sation  ag reement w ith  u s.  S ee E mp loy ment Ag reements.

(4) M r. R ain es an d Mr. S elf can  earn  com p en satio n pay ab le in  the fu tu re pu rsu an t to  lo ng  term  in centive p lan s.  See Em p lo ym ent
A greemen ts.
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O pt io ns  Gran t ed  For th e Fis ca l Y ea r End in g M ay  3 1 , 20 03 

F or  the fiscal year  en din g May 3 1, 2 0 03  n o o ptio n s were gr an ted  to any  o f  the o f ficer s named  in the S um m ar y Com pens ation 
Tab le.

Aggregated Options/SAR Exercises in Last Fiscal Year and Fiscal Year-End Option/SAR Values.

The following table sets forth the value of unexercised options and SARs held by the named executives at May 31,
2003, under our 1999 Stock Option Plan.  No options were exercised by such persons during the year ended May 31, 2003.

Name

Number of
Securities

Underlying
Options/SARs

Exercised
$ Value
Realized

Number of Securities
Underlying Unexercised

Options/SARs
At Fiscal Year-End (#)

Exercisable (E)/
Unexercisable (U)

Value of Unexercised
In-the-Money

Options/SARs at
Fiscal Year-End ($)

Exercisable (E)/
Unexercisable (U)

Fred Adams -0- -0- -0- -0-

R. K. Looper -0- -0-

$16,000 E/$16,000 E

$16,000 U/$16,000 U

$35,840 E/$35,840 E

$35,840 U/$35,840 U

Adolphus Baker -0- -0-

$16,000 E/$16,000 E

$16,000 U/$16,000 U

$35,840 E/$35,840 E

$35,840 U/$35,840 U

B. J. Raines -0- -0-

$16,000 E/$16,000 E

$16,000 U/$16,000 U

$35,840 E/$35,840 E

$35,840 U/$35,840 U

Jack Self -0- -0-

$12,000 E/$12,000 E

$ 8,000 U/$ 8,000 U

$26,880 E/$26880 E

$17,920 U/$17,920 U

Emp lo yee S to ck Ow nersh ip  Plan 

W e main tain a p ay ro ll- bas ed  Emp loy ee Stock O wn er s hip Plan.  Pur su an t to the ESO P , or iginally  establis hed  in 1 97 6, all fu ll
tim e em p lo yees ov er  ag e 2 1 with  on e o r mo re year s  o f s er vice, p ar ticip ate.  I ts  ass ets , w hich  cu rr en tly  con s is t p rimarily of 
Com mo n S to ck  of  the Co mp any , ar e m an aged by  a tr u stee d esign ated by  th e Board .  Co ntr ib utio n s by  us  m ay  be m ade in cas h
o r sh ar es of  Co mm on  Stock , as  d eterm ined by  th e Board  o f  D ir ector s.  Emp loy ee co ntrib utio ns  ar e n ot p er m itted .  Com p an y
con tr ib u tion s  g en er ally m ay  n ot ex ceed 15 % o f th e agg reg ate ann ual com pen sation  of  p articip ating  em ploy ees .  Co ntrib utio n s
are allo cated  to th e acco un ts  o f  p ar ticip ating  em ploy ees  in the p ro p or tio n wh ich  each  emp lo y ee’s  co mp en s atio n  f or  th e year
b ears  to  the to tal com pen sation  (u p to $1 50 ,00 0 p er  emp loy ee)  o f all p ar ticip ating  em ploy ees  s ub s eq uent to  J anu ar y 1 , 20 0 2.
Com pany  co ntr ib utio n s ves t im med iately up on  th e com mencement of  an emp lo y ee’s  p articipation  in  th e ES OP .

S hares o f Co m mo n Sto ck  h eld  in an em p lo yee’s  acco un t ar e v oted by  th e ES O P tr us tee in  accor d an ce with  th e em p lo yee’s 
ins tr uctio ns .  An  em ploy ee or  h is or  her ben ef iciar y is  en titled to  distr ib utio n  o f the b alance o f his o r her  accou n t up o n
ter minatio n o f em plo ym en t.  Our  co ntr ib utio n s to  th e ES O P am o un ted to ap p ro ximately $ 2,05 6,0 00  in  calen d ar  y ear  2 00 2 .  Fo r
calen dar  y ear  2 00 3, ou r con tr ib u tion s  to th e ESO P  o n beh alf o f each  of  th e ex ecu tive of ficer s nam ed  in the S u mm ar y
Com pens ation  Table w er e: Fr ed  R. A dam s, J r. - $5 ,05 1, Rich ar d  K . Loo per $ 3,33 4 , A do lp hu s  B. Bak er  -  $3 ,3 1 1, Bob b y J.
Raines -  $ 3,1 63 , an d  J ack  S elf -  $ 2,7 14 .
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1 99 3 St o ck  O p tion  Plan 

O ur  1 99 3  A men ded an d  r es tated  S tock O ptio n P lan w as  ado p ted o n May 2 5, 1 9 93 , an d  amen ded an d  r es tated  o n  O cto ber 10 ,
1 99 6.  This P lan was  app r ov ed  b y  o ur  sh ar eh o ld er s  o n May  2 5, 19 93 .  A to tal o f 5 00 ,0 0 0 sh ar es of  ou r co m mo n s to ck  w as 
r es er ved  f or  is su an ce un d er  this  P lan .

I nasm uch  as ten  y ear s hav e pass ed sin ce the ad op tio n of  th is  Plan , b y its  ter ms  no  m o re o ption s m ay  b e g ranted th er eun der .

The exer cise pr ice f or  s h ar es  o f  s to ck su bject to  o ptio n s un d er  the Plan  cann ot be less  than  1 00 % o f fair mar ket value o f  o ur 
com mo n s to ck  on  the date of  g ran t of  th e op tio ns .  Th e s hares  u nd er  th is  plan  ar e su b ject to  adju stment to  p r ev en t d ilution .

There ar e cu r rently  op tio ns  o uts tand ing  u nd er th is Plan  fo r a total of  7 7 ,0 65  s h ar es .  All m us t b e ex er cis ed  with in  ten ( 10 ) years 
o f gr an t.  Th e ex er cis e p rices are f r om  $ 3.9 5 to  $4 .3 3.

S hares s ub ject to  th e 19 9 3 Plan  have been  r egistered un d er  th e Secu r ities  A ct o f  1 93 3 .  The sh ar es will be w ith dr aw n  f ro m  s uch
r eg is tr ation  pr om ptly af ter  eff ectiv eness  o f  the revers e s plit.

1999 Stock Option Plan

Our 1999 Stock Option Plan was adopted on April 15, 1999, and approved by the shareholders on October 11, 1999. Under
the 1999 Plan, a total of 500,000 shares of Common Stock were reserved for issuance upon the exercise of options that could
be granted under the 1999 Plan.  Options for 500,000 shares were awarded in December 13, 1999 by the Board of Directors
and can be either incentive stock options ( ISOs ) to satisfy the requirements of ⁄ 422 of the Internal Revenue Code (the
Code ), or non-statutory options ( NSOs ) which are not intended to satisfy such requirements.

Under the 1999 Plan, the exercise price per share for any option granted may not be less than 100% of the fair market value
of the common stock on the date of the grant.  The number and kind of shares subject to an option and the option exercise
price may be adjusted in certain circumstances to prevent dilution.  The method of payment of an option exercise price will
be as determined by the Board of Directors and as is set forth in the individual stock option agreements.

The options presently outstanding, all of which are held by employees, including executive officers and executive officers
who are also directors, are for a total of 500,000 shares granted on December 13, 1999, at an exercise price of $3.00 per share
and must be exercised no later than ten years after grant.  Options for approximately 28,000 shares previously issued were
surrendered by departing employees and have been reissued at exercise prices ranging from $3.95 per share to $4.19 per
share.  Shares subject to the 1999 Plan have been registered under the Securities Act of 1933.  The shares will be withdrawn
from such registration promptly after effectiveness of the reverse stock split.

S av in gs  an d R et irement  Plan 

S in ce 1 9 85 , w e have main tained a d ef ined co n tr ib u tion  s aving s  and  r etirem en t plan (th e Retiremen t Plan ), w h ich is  desig ned
to qu alify  u n der Section s  4 01  ( a) an d  4 01  ( k ) of  th e Co d e.  An em plo yee is elig ible to participate in  th e Retir em en t P lan  o n or 
after  h aving  attain ed ag e 2 1 an d  after on e y ear o f fu ll time serv ice.  Th e Retir em en t P lan is ad m in is ter ed  b y  u s an d  p er m its
cov er ed  em plo yees  to  con tribu te up  to  the m aximu m  allow ed by  th e IRS  r eg u lation s .  High ly  co mp en s ated  em ploy ees  m ay  be
s ub ject to  f u rther lim itation s o n th e amo un t o f their  m aximu m  con tr ibu tio n.  We may m ak e dis cr etion ar y con tr ibu tion s  m atching 
each em p lo yee’s  p re- tax con tr ib u tion s .  At the p r es en t tim e, we d o n ot m ake d is cretio nary  co ntrib utio ns .  Th e Retir ement Plan  is 
inten ded  to com ply w ith the Emp loy ee Retirem en t I ncom e S ecur ity  A ct of  1 9 74 , as  am en d ed .

P ar ticip atin g  emp lo y ees are at all times 10 0 % ves ted in  th eir  accou n t balan ces u nd er  th e Retir em ent P lan .  Benefits  ar e p aid at
the tim e o f a p ar ticip an t’s  d eath, r etiremen t, d isability, term in ation  o f  emp lo y ment, and , u nd er  limited  cir cum stan ces , m ay  b e
w ithd raw n pr ior  to the em ploy ee’s ter minatio n of  serv ice.  Co ntribu tio ns  ar e no t tax able to  em plo yees  u n til s uch fu n ds  ar e
d is tr ib u ted to th em .

Emp lo yment  A g reemen t s

W e have en ter ed  into  cer tain in cen tiv e co mp ens ation  con tin uatio n ag r eemen ts  w ith  Rich ar d K. Loo per, Bo bb y  J . Raines and 
J ack Self.  Pur su an t to the agr eem en ts, each  executiv e o ff icer may ear n u p to  ten years  o f com pen sation  paym ents if  he r emain s
w ith us  un til age 6 5 .  If  the o f ficer ’s  emp loy men t en ds  befo r e his 6 5th b ir th day , he wo uld b e en titled to few er  y ear s of  in centive
com pens ation  paym en ts, d epend in g  o n the len g th  o f  tim e s er ved  as an  of ficer .  Th e in cen tive co mp ens atio n  p ay m en ts  ar e mad e
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m on th ly , b eg inn in g imm ed iately after  th e of f icer ’s 65 th  birth day, at the an nu al rate of  $ 50 ,00 0 p er  y ear  f or  Mess rs . Loo per and 
Raines and  $ 2 0,00 0 p er  y ear  f or  Mr . S elf.  The A g reem en ts pr o vide th at o n ce p ay m en ts  begin o r hav e been  earn ed, any 
r em ainin g pay ments w ill con tinu e to b e made to  th e of ficer ’s  es tate af ter  h is  d eath.

Mr. Loo per h ad  earn ed  ten years  o f  incentiv e com pen satio n paym ents u nd er  h is ag r eement.  Mr . Loo per b eg an  receiv ing  h is
p ay ments  o n D ecem ber  1 , 1 99 1 an d  p ay m en ts  ceas ed  on  N ov emb er  1, 2 00 1 .  Mr . Rain es has  ear ned  f if teen years  an d will earn 
an ad ditio nal y ear f or  each  y ear  w or k ed  ther eafter un til h is  retirem en t.  Mr. S elf  h as earn ed eig hteen y ears  an d will ear n an 
add itio n al y ear  f or  each  year  w o rk ed  th er eaf ter u ntil h is retir em en t.

 Direct o r Co mpens at ion 

The Com p an y’s  n on -em ploy ee directo rs  ar e each en titled to receive $ 1 0,00 0  ann ually  as  com pen satio n fo r their  serv ices as  a
d ir ecto r  and  have b een  g r an ted o ptio n s to  p u rchas e Co mm o n Sto ck  u nd er th e 1 99 3 P lan and  m ay  be g r an ted o ptio n s un der  the
1 99 9 Plan.  Optio ns  to  p u rchase 12 ,0 0 0 sh ar es of  Co mm on  Stock  at a p rice of  $ 4.3 3 per  s hare were gr an ted  o n O ctob er  15 , 1 99 6
to each  of  W . D . (J ack ) Cox  and  R. F as er  Tr ip lett, the th en  no n- em p lo yee d ir ector s o f th e Com pan y.  Ms . H ug h es  w as  gr an ted 
o ptio ns  to  p u rchase 12 ,0 0 0 sh ar es of  co mm on  stock  at a p rice of  $ 4.2 5 on  May 1, 20 03 .  All o ptio n s ex pir e ten  y ears  af ter  g rant.
D ir ecto r s als o may b e co m pens ated fo r  any  s erv ices perf o rm ed  in  add ition  to  their no r mal du ties as a dir ecto r  o f th e Com p an y.
Emp lo yee-d ir ector s r eceiv e no  ad ditio nal co m pens ation  f o r th eir  s er v ices  as  d ir ector s  o f th e Com p an y.  For  s erv ices  rend ered
d ur in g f is cal y ear 2 00 1 r elativ e to the Com p an y’s  then con tem plated  g oin g pr iv ate   tr an s actio n, Mes s rs . Cox  and  Tr ip lett an d 
Ms. H ug h es  each  r eceiv ed  an  add ition al paym ent o f  $ 10 ,0 0 0.  As memb ers  o f  the cu rr en t S pecial Co m mittee co ns idering  th e
p resently pr o po sed g oing  pr iv ate tran sactio n , su ch directo rs  have r eceiv ed an  ad ditio nal $1 0 ,0 00  fee each.

C ompens a tion  Co mmit t ee I n terlock s an d  I ns id er Pa rticipa t io n

I n Octo b er  1 9 96 , th e Boar d of  D irecto rs  establis h ed  a Co mp en s atio n Com mittee.  As in d icated  ab ov e, th e m em ber s of  th e
Com mittee ar e F red R. Ad ams , Jr ., Ch air man o f th e Board  of  D irector s  and  Ch ief Execu tiv e Of f icer , and  W . D . ( Jack ) Cox  an d
R. F as er  Tr ip lett, M.D ., in d ep en den t dir ecto rs  of  th e Co mp any .  On ly  Mr . Ad ams  is an em p lo yee o f th e Com pan y.

R ep ort o f Co mpens at ion  C o mmit tee

The compensation of the officers of the Company is determined by the Compensation Committee in consultation with the
Executive Committee of the Board of Directors.  The Compensation Committee consists of Messrs. Cox, Triplett and Adams,
while the Executive Committee consists of Messrs. Adams, Looper, Baker and Raines.

The compensation of all officers consists of two components, a base salary and a bonus.  The bonus which may be received
by officers, other than members of the Executive Committee, is determined by a formula set forth in the Company’s Bonus
Program.  The maximum bonus which an officer is entitled to receive is computed by taking his salary on the first day of the
then fiscal year, adding his bonus from the previous year, and dividing by 2.  This is the theoretical maximum that an officer
may receive.

Other than officers who are members of the Executive Committee, of the maximum bonus payable, 50% of that bonus is
predicated on the officer’s individual performance and 50% is predicated on the profitability of the Company.  If the
Company achieves a pre-tax profit equal to 5 cents per dozen eggs produced by the Company, the officer will receive the
entire profitability component of his bonus.  If the Company achieves profitability at a pre-tax level less than 5 cents per
dozen eggs produced, the profitability component of the bonus will be reduced proportionately.  For example, if the
Company earned a pre-tax profit of 2.5 cents per dozen eggs produced, the officer would be entitled to receive only one-half
of the profitability component of his bonus.

The performance component of his bonus is determined by the Compensation Committee upon recommendation by the
Executive Committee.  The Executive Committee evaluates the respective responsibilities and performance of each officer,
and based on their evaluation of that officer’s performance, a recommendation as to what percentage of his performance
component should be given is given to the Compensation Committee.  An officer’s total bonus is the sum of the profitability
component and the bonus component.

Officers who are members of the Executive Committee are not eligible to participate in the established bonus program. While
members of the Executive Committee also receive a base salary and are eligible to receive a bonus in addition to their salary,
the amount of their bonus, if any, is determined exclusively by the Compensation Committee.  In determining the bonus, if
any, to be paid to members of the Executive Committee, the Compensation Committee takes into consideration the
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performance of the Company, its profitability, and the individual contributions of the members of the Executive Committee.
No formula is utilized in computing such bonuses.

The base compensation and bonuses available to all officers is intended by the Company to place the Company generally in
the center of the compensation range paid to comparable employees in similar industries, with particular emphasis upon
commodity-based companies such as egg producers, marketers, poultry producers, processors and distributors.

The overwhelming majority of businesses in the industry of the Company are privately held and, therefore, compensation
information is not readily available.  However, the general ranges of compensation within such industry are generally well
known within the industry, and the Compensation Committee believes that the salaries and bonuses paid to the Company
officers fall within the middle of the range being paid.  It is the philosophy of the Company neither to pay the highest nor the
lowest salaries or bonuses.

In evaluating the performance of the members of the Executive Committee, the Compensation Committee recognizes that the
results of Company operation are significantly determined by factors over which management has little or no control, such as
egg prices and the cost of feed ingredients.  As a result, the compensation paid to officers serving as members of the
Executive Committee is almost entirely subjective.

Fred R. Adams, Jr.
R. Faser Triplett, M.D.
W.D. Cox

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management

The f ollow in g  tab le sets  fo rth inf or m atio n as to  th e ben ef icial o wn ers hip  o f ou r  com m on  s to ck as  of  A ug u st 1 4 , 20 03 , b y:

•   each per so n k no wn  b y  u s to benef icially  o wn  mo re th an  5 % o f the clas s ou tstan din g, an d

•   each dir ecto r , each  no min ee to s er ve as  a d irecto r of  th e Co m pany , each execu tiv e of f icer  n amed in
the S um m ar y Com pens ation  Table ( see Co mp en s atio n  o f  Ex ecutive O ff icers  an d Dir ecto r s )  an d
b y all d ir ector s an d  o ff icers  as  a g r ou p.

N ame of  Be ne f ic ia l O wner ( 2) 

C ommo n Sto ck and Cla ss   A  Co mmo n St o ck
         N umbe r o f Sha re s( 1)                           Per ce nt  of  C las s

C ommo n                      C la ss  A           C ommo n                 C la ss  A 
Per ce nt  of  To ta l Vo t ing

Pow er  ( 3 )

Fre d R. Ad am s , Jr .   4 ,2 64 ,40 8( 4) (5)              1 ,0 85 ,00 0 3 9.8%                         9 0 .4 %                 6 6.5 %

Cal-Main e Fo o ds , In c .  Em ploy ee 
Sto ck  O w ne rs h ip  Pla n 

  3 ,4 21 ,6 1 8 3 1.9                 1 5.0 

D im en sio na l Fun d Ad v is or s     6 18 ,85 0    5.8                   2 .7

Ric ha rd  K. Loo pe r     1 67 ,18 3( 6 )      1.6                  *

A do lp hu s  B. Bak er     2 64 ,62 3( 7)                      1 15 ,00 0    2.5                              9 .6                   8 .0

Bob by  J . Rain es     2 26 ,55 0( 8)    1.8                   1 .0

J ac k B. Se lf       4 7 ,9 01 ( 9)                  *

J oe  M. Wya tt     1 64 ,23 4( 10)    1.3                  *

Cha rles  F. Co llin s       8 7 ,5 60 ( 11)     *                  *

W. D. ( J ac k)  Co x       1 2 ,0 00     *                  *

R. Fas er  Tr ip le tt, M.  D.       4 0 ,0 00     *                  *

Letitia  C. H u gh es         3,00 0     *                  *

A ll d ir e ctor s  a nd  e x ec utive  o ff ice rs  as  a 
g ro up  ( ten  p e rs on s)  ( 12)  5,26 4,9 46                      1 ,2 00 ,00 0 4 9.1                           1 00 .0                76 .0 

_ __ __ __ _ __ __ _ __ __ __ _ __ 
*   Less th an  1% .
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( 1) The inf o rm ation  as to ben ef icial o wn ers hip is bas ed  o n inf or m atio n k no wn  to  u s o r statements  f ur n is hed to us  by  the
b en ef icial o w ners .  As  u s ed  in this tab le, benef icial o wn er s hip   mean s  the so le o r  s har ed  p ow er to  vo te o r  to d ir ect the
v otin g o f a s ecur ity , or  th e  so le o r  s hared  inv estment po wer  w ith r es pect to  a secu r ity (i.e. th e po wer  to d is po se of , o r to 
d ir ect the d isp os ition  o f  a s ecu rity ) .  For  pu rp o ses of  th is  table, a per so n is  deem ed as  o f  any  date to  h av e benef icial
o wn er sh ip   of  an y secur ity that s uch per so n h as  the righ t to acq uire with in  60  d ays  after su ch date, s uch  as un d er  o u r
S to ck  O p tion  Plan s.

( 2) The add r es s o f each  pers o n, excep t W .  D. Cox , R. F as er  Tr ip lett, M.D . and  Letitia C. H u gh es  is  Cal- Main e F oo ds , I nc.,
3 32 0 Wo o dr ow  Wils on  Dr iv e ( Po st Of fice Bo x 2 96 0) , J acks on , Mis s is sipp i 3 92 0 7.  Mr . Cox ’s ad dr ess  is  1 16 1 O ak 
Riv er  Ro ad , Mem ph is , Ten n es see 3 81 20 ; D r. Tr ip lett’s ad d ress  is  4 04  West Park way , Rid geland , Mis s is sipp i 3 91 5 7;
Ms. H ug h es ’ add ress  is  P .O. Box  29 1, Jack so n , Mis siss ip p i 39 2 05 .

(3) Percent of total voting power is based on the total votes to which the Common Stock (one vote per share) and
Class˚A Common Stock (ten votes per share) are entitled.

(4) The number of shares shown in the table include 427,231 shares of Common Stock owned by Mr. Adams’ spouse,
separately and as to which Mr. Adams disclaims beneficial ownership.

(5) Includes 265,217 shares accumulated under the Cal-Maine Foods, Inc. Employee Stock Ownership Plan ( ESOP ).

(6) Includes 75,678 shares accumulated under ESOP and 12,608 shares owned by Mr. Looper’s spouse.

( 7) I nclu des  9 6,6 53  s har es  o w ned by  Mr . Bak er ’s  sp ou s e separ ately  and  as  cus to dian  fo r their  ch ildr en as  to  w hich Mr .
Bak er  d isclaims  any  benef icial o wn er s hip an d  3 5,6 92  s har es  accu mu lated  u n der th e ESO P .

( 8) I nclu des  1 2,3 39  s har es  accu mu lated  u n der th e ESO P  and  5 ,00 0 s hares o wn ed  by  Mr. Rain es’ s po u se.

( 9) I nclu des  2 6,1 01  s hares accum u lated u nd er  th e ES O P.

( 10 ) I nclu des  1 1,2 08  s har es  accu mu lated  u n der th e ESO P .

( 11 ) I nclu des  7 5,5 60  s har es  accu mu lated  u n der th e ESO P .

( 12 ) I nclu des  s har es  as to wh ich  Mes s rs . A dams  an d Bak er  d is claim  an y ben ef icial o wn ers hip .  S ee No tes (4 ) and  ( 7 ) ab ov e.

The s har es  o f  Com mo n  S to ck accu m ulated in  th e ES O P, as ind icated in  No tes  ( 5)  th ro ug h  ( 11 ) abo ve, als o are in clud ed  in  th e
3 ,4 21 ,6 1 8 sh ares sh o wn  in  the table as ow ned  b y the ESO P .



23

Equity Compensation Plan Information

Plan Category

Number of shares to be
issued upon exercise of

outstanding options

Weighted-average
exercise price of

outstanding options

Number of shares remaining
available for future issuance under

equity compensation plans

Equity compensation plans
approved by security holders 543,000 $3.23 -0-

Equity compensation plans not
approved by security holders 0 - -

Total 543,000 $3.23 -0-

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions.

The Com p an y o wn s ap p ro xim ately 1 4% o f  Egg land  s Bes t, I nc. ( Egg land  s Bes t ), a sp ecialty  eg g mar keting  firm .  Du rin g th e
f is cal y ear end ed  May 31 , 2 00 3, th e Com pany  paid  ap pr ox imately $3  Millio n  to Egg land  s Bes t fo r m er ch and is in g  s er v ices .
Richard  K. Loo per, Vice Ch airm an of  th e Bo ard  an d a dir ecto r  o f th e Com p an y, is  a d irector  an d Chair man  o f Egg land  s Bes t,
I nc.
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